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HYPERION
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Group directors’ report for the year ended 30 September 2013

The directars submit ther report and audited financia!l statements for Hypenon insurance Group Limited {“the Company’)
together with the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2013

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company dunng the year was that of a holding and investment company for a group of insurance
inlermedianes The Group's trading operations compnse wholesale and retail insurance broking, remnsurance broking and
underwnling agencies

Dividends

The prohit of the Group for the year alter taxation and atinbutable 1o shareholders amounted to £7.1m (2012 £18 4m) Equity
dividends wera paid dunng the year amounting to £2 Om (2012 £1 2m)

Significant changes in shareholding, and repurchase of shares

On 8 July 2013, General Aflantic Hawthorn B V {*Genera!l Atlantic™) purchased shares represanting in lotal 28 B5% of the
share capital of the Company, in a& transaction involving the sale of shares held by two of the Company's major
shareholders 31 Group plc (Including ceram of its investment vehicles) (*3i") and BP Marsh & Company Limited (“BP
Marsh™) Pner {o the transaclion, 3 and BP Marsh held 22 42% and 13 61% respaclively in the share capta! of the
Company i sold 100% and BP Marsh sold B0% of thewr respective shareholdings in the Company in the transaction BP
Marsh sold 80% of its sharehotding in the Company to General Atlanic and granted an option to General Atlantic to
purchase the remaintng 20% of ils sharehciding As of the date of this report, this option has not yet been exercised

The transaction also involved the Company buying back from 31 shares representing 55% of its total share capital
Subsequent o this the Company ssued new shares representing 1 88% of its total share capital (following the repurchase)
to cerlam current employesas and/or shareholders The balance of the shares sold by 31 in the transaction was purchased by
General Aflantic

Events after the repoarting period

On 17 Oclober 2013, the Company and its subsidianes HIG Finance Limited and Hyperion Finance S & rl entered into an
agreement (the “Credit Agreement™) with J P Margan Eurcpe Limited, J P Morgan Chase Bank N A, J P Morgan Lirmuted,
HSBC Secunties {USA) Inc., Lioyds Secunties, Inc , and the Lenders listed in the Credit Agrsement, for a Senior Secured
Term Loan of US$250 million {the *Term Loan") and a Revolving Credit Facility of £25 mullion {logether, the “Loans”) The
purpose of these Loans 15 to refinance exisbng indebtedness and to provide a more diversified source of funding for the
future expansion and growth of the Group Further terms and conditions of the Term Loan are disclosed m the notes to the
financial statements

On 24 October 2013, the Group, through its subsidiary DUAL Intarnational Limited, acquired a controlling interest in Pnmary
Group Inc (“PGI"), an estabhshed property and casually programme manager which operates underwnting olfices m
Calforia, Flonda, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey and New York This acquisitton wili signficantly expand the Group's
presence in the United States of Amenca.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (conlinued)
The Board
The Board 1s responsible for maintaining effective control over the Group's significant strategic, financial, organisatonal,
legal and regulatory matters It meets at least six imes a year Management supply the Board wath appropnate and timely
information and the directors are free to sesk any further information they consider necessary

Directors

The directars who served dunng the year are listed below

J P de Blocq van Kuffeler Chairman

D P Howden Chief Executive

E R M Fady Finance Director

L | Muiioz-Rojas Entrecanates

J D Bemstemn {appointed 8 July 2013}
D C Hodgson (appointed 25 July 2013)
E H Woolf

Lord Forsyth

J S Newman {resigned 8 July 2013}

D A Whileman (resignad 8 July 2013}

Direclors’ indemnities

The Company has made qualifying third party mdemnity provisions for the beneft of its directors which were made during
the year and remain in force at the date of this report

Corporate governance

The Board ts comnutted to mantaming igh standards of corporate govemance We recognise thal good governance helps
the business to deliver our strategy and safeguard shareholders’ long-term interests We believe that the UK Corporate
Govermance Code provides a useful gurde and we apply these pnnciples as appropnate to a group of our size

The Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision

Matters requiring Board approval include Group strategy and planning, structure and capital, inancial reporting and controls,
kay business policies (including the remuneration policy), Board membership and other appointments

The Board cumently compnses two executive directors and six non-executive direclors (including the Chairman) with an
appropnats balance ol expenence and knowledge As a result, the Board's dacision-making processes cannot be dominated
by an individual or small group

Mr Bemstein and Mr Hodgson represent on the Company's Board the shareholding mterests of the Group's largest
sharsholder General Atlanlic Hawthom B V The Board believes that the presence of Mr Bemstein and Mr Hodgson on the
Board is appropnate and i the interests of shareholders generally and does not detract from their independence on any
relevani issue Mr de Blocq van Kufteler (the Chairman of the Board) and Mr. Woolf (the senior independent non-executive
director) are independent of any of the Company's major sharehclders While Mr Woolf has been a director of the Company
since 1999, the Board believes thal his presence on the Board and as Chairman of the Audit Committee continuaes to be
appropnate and in the mterests of shareholders genarally, having regard o his particular expertise and relevant expenence
tn relation to hus role

The directors have access lo independent prolessional advice at the Company's expense, where deemed necessary, to
discharge thew responsibilities as directors The directors also have access lo the adwice and services of the Company
Secretary

Accountability and audit
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systems af internal control and for reviewing their effectiveness
The implementation and maintenance of the nsk management and wtemal control systems are the responsibility of the

executive directors and semor management The systems are designed to manage, rather than etiminate, the nsk of fature
to achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or

{oss
Relations with shareholders

The Board ensures thal a satstaclory dialogue with major investors and employee shareholders takes place Each of the
Company’s major investors 1s represented on the Board by a director

2
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DIRECTORS® REPORT (continued)

Conflicts of interest

The Company’s Anticles of Association permit the Board to authonse potential conflicts of interest Authorisation of any such
conflicts may only be given by directors who have no interest in the matter being considered The Board has proceduras in
place to review actual and potenbal conflicts of interest

Messrs Howden, Muiioz-Rojas Entrecanales, Bemstein and Hodgson represent the interasts of the Company's three largest
shareholdars and theair interests have been notified to the Company

Board Commitiees

The Board has delegated cerain responsibilities to Committees that are descnbed below, all of which have formally
constituted terms of reference

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive directors and 1s chaired by Emile Wooll The Commuttee meets at least
four mes a year Mestings are atlended, by invitation, by the Company’s exemal audior, the Finance Director and
members of his stafl, compliance officers and Intemal Audit The Audit Committee, through its Chairman, formally reports 1o
the Board on its actmtes

The Committee’s role 18 1o assist the Boards of the Company and its subsidianes in ulfitling their responsibilities with regard
to accounting policies, intemal contrel, inancial reporting funclions, nsk management, comphance and related matters

Membership

E H Woolf {Chairman)
Lord Forsyth
J D Bernstain (alternate. A J Given)

External auditor

The Commitiee 1s responsible for overseeng the relationship with the external auditor. Dunng the year, the Committae
reviewed the extemal auditor's terms of engagement, assessed its independence and reviewed its audit findings.

The formal policy on audttor iIndependence was adapled by the Comnultes in December 2010 Among other things, this sets
out the crrcumstances under which the extemal group auditor can prowide non-audt services in a manner that doas not
conflict with its independence

Internal Audit

The Audit Committes 1s required to assist the Board to fulfil its responsibilitres relating to the adequacy of the resourcing and
plans of the Intemal Audit department To [ulfil these duties, the Committee

reviewed and assessed the annual inlemal audi plan,

reviewed all repants on the Group from the internal auditors,

reviewed (he co-ordination between internal and extarnal auditors,

reviewed and monitored management's responsivensss 1o the findings and recormmendations of the intemal audior;
and

» discussed with Intemal Audit, withoul management being present, its remit and any issues ansing from the intemal
audits carned out.




HYPERION

INSURANCE GROUP

HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

(i) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee compnses four non-executive diractors and is chaired by John de Blocq van Kufleler The
Committee nomnally meets four times a year Mestings are attended by the Chiel Executive and by the Group Human
Resources manager Other individuals and extemal adwisers may be invied to attend for all or part of any meeting as and
when appropriate The Remuneration Commitiee, through its Chairman, formally reports to the Board on its activities.

The Caommittee’s overall responsibility 15 to balance the vanous interests of shareholders, the Group and its employees, with
the aim o! ensunng that the Group, through its remuneration policy, 1s able to attract, retain and motivate management and
semor staif of appropnate expenence and experttse. Further details on the activites of the Remuneration Committee are
included in the directors’ remuneration report on page 9

Membership

J P de Blocq van Kuiieler {Chairman)
E H Wooll

Lord Forsyth

J D Bernstein

(iii} Nomination Committee

The Nominatign Committee comprises four non-executive directors and the Chuef Executive Officer, and 1s chasred by John
de Blocq van Kuffeler The Committea normally maeis twice a year The Committee’s overall responsibility is o review
regularly and to evaluate the balance of skills, expenence, independence and knowledge on the Board and, in light of this
evaluaton, prepare a descnption of the role and capabdiies required for a particular appointment, making recommendations
to the Board with regard to any changes

Membership

J P de Blocq van Kuffeler {Chairman)
E H Woolf

DP Howden

4 D Bernstamn

Lord Forsyth

Board and committee attendance 2013

Board Audit Remuneration Normination
Committes Commites Committee
E R M Fady 6 - - -
D P Howden 6 - - 1
J P da Blacg van Kuffeler 6 - 4 1
L | Muhoz-Rojas Entracanales 6 - . -
J D Bemstein 21 2't 1t 1t
O C Hodgson 2t - - -
J S Newman 4% 2t 3t -
D A Whileman 3% 2% 31 -
E H Weolf 6 4 4 1
Lord Forsyth 6 2t 3t 1t
Total meetings 6 4 4 1

* Including attendance by Allemate
t Appointed dunng the year
1 Resigned during the year
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HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT {continued)

Directors' Interests
At 30 Septemmber At 30 September At 30 September At 30 September

2013 2013 2012 2012

No of No of Mo ol No of

A Qidinary B Ordinary A Ordinary 8 Ordinary

Shares Shares Shares Shares

ERM Fagy' . 668,600 . 668,600
D P Howden ® 6,216,900 - 6,264,600 .
J P de Blocq van Kutisler ' - 424,400 . 424,400
L ! Mufioz-Rogas Entrecanales ® 8,643,900 - 8,643,900 -
J S Newman . - . -
D A Whilaman - - -
€ HWoolf * - 20,000 . -
Lord Forsyth * - 20,000 . 20,000
J D Bemslen - - - -
D C Hodgson - - . -
Al 30 September 2013 At 30 September 2012

No. of No of

C Crdinary C Crdinary

Shares Shares

ERMFady* 70,000 70,000
D P Howden 105,600 105,600

J P de Blocq van Kuffeler - -
L | Muiioz-Rejas Enfrecanales -
J § Newman -
D A Whileman
E H Wooll
Lord Forsyth

J D Bernstemn
D C Hodgson - -

[ N T}

Shareholamg includss shares hald in SIPP

Sharehaldng includes sharas hald in family trus! and in SIPP

Shares held ihrough investor companies in which the tirector has an interos!
Shares hald In wite s name

-0y -

Note All the shares histed above were acquired by each Director (or their connected persons) al the current pnce for the
class of shares acquired at the date of acquisition

Disclosure aof information to the auditor

Each of the persons who 5 a director at the dale of approval of thus report confirms that:

+ 5o far as the directors are awara, there 1 no relavant audit iInformation of which the Group's auditor 15 unaware, and
» the direclors have (aken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order lo make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that inlormation

This conlirmation 15 given and sheuld be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of secton 418 of the Companias Act
2006

Auditor

Delostte LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for ancther term and appropnate arrangemenis have been
put i place for them to be reappointed as audior at the Annual General Meating.

Approved by the Board and signed on iis behalf by

’l})&(iw/

Pallot
Secretary

\L0. December 2013
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Group strategic report for the year ended 30 September 2013
Financial review

The financial statements include a consolidated income statemant, consohdated statement of comprehensive meome,
consalidated statement of financial position and consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 30 September 2013,
together with comparative figures for the year ended 30 September 2012

The Group has adoptad Internationat Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS") as the basis of preparation cf its consohdated
accounts The slatutory accounts of individual companies within the Group continue to be prepared in accordance with local
accounting standards and in this regard the balance sheet for the parent company, Hypenon Insurance Group Limited, has
been prepared in accordance with UK Generally Acceptad Accountmng Principles (‘UK GAAP™).

The segmenial analysis of the Group identifies the approach adopled by the Group in assessing its financial performance
and the lollowing comments are probably more easily interpreted by reference to note 3

Continuing Operations

The Board is pleased to announce that the Group reported a 50 2% growth in fees and commissicns to £163 6m (2012
£108 9m) Group EBITDA (Eamings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) excluding acquisition costs and
non-recurring ilems was up 74.2% to £35.9m (2012 £206m) Group operating profit, before acquisition costs and non-
recumng tems was £29 Sm (2012 £17.5m} Acqusition costs and non-recurnng ems are separately identfied to provide
greater understanding of the Group's underlying perdormance Further analysis of these items can be found in the notes fo
the consolidated financiat stalements Group profit before tax was £15 9mcompared {0 €7 Om in 2012,

Thea Broking Group reported fee and commission income of £124 Om (2012 £74.8m), ropresenting overall growth of £43 3m
(67%) compared to pnior year EBITDA was £24 dm (2012. £12 1m)

DUAL Intemational reporied an 18% increase in revenue from £34 2m te £38 6m and its EBITDA increased from £9 9m lo
£13.5m (35 9%) Gross wniten premuums increasad by 12% to £254 4m

Acquisitions and growth

On 5 February 2013, the Company acquired through its newly-tormed subsidiary Hypenon Manne Holdings Limited a 55%
shareholding in FP Group Limited, the holding company ol a Hong Kong based spacialist manna insurance broking group

On 7 August 2013, the Group acquired a 60% shareholding in Workplace Pengion Solutions (UK) Limited, a Cardiff based
insurance brokerage and consuttancy firm The name has since been changed to Howden Employee Benefits UK Limited

On 24 September 2013, the Group acquired 51% of the shareholding in Northedge Forsiknngsmegling AS (now Howden
Forsiknngsmegling AS), an insurance brokerage based In Norway

The Group also acquired interests in insurance brokerage firms in Chile and the Netherlands dunng the yaar The Group
doses not control these iInvestments and they ara therefore accounted for as Investments n Associates

The results of the Windsor Graup, which was acquired dunng the pnor year, are now fully integrated mto the Group
Internal control and risk management

The Board s responsible for mantaining a sound system of internal conlrol and nsk management, and for reviewing its
effactiveness to saleguard sharsholders’ investments and Group assets There is no absolute means ol praventing matenal
loss andfor misstatement and the Group’s intemal controls reflect a balanced judgement, taking into account the direct costs
of controls as well as the indirect costs of being over-bureaucratic, which provide reasonable assurance agamst matenal
loss and/or misstatement

The Group's intemal controls are tested and key business risks are evaluated on a continuing basis, using tnternal Audit,
Compliance, and other relevant expertise The Group marntains insurance cover against certain nsks, including fidelity
insurance
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Principal business risks and uncertainties

The Group is exposed to the cyclical factors that afiect the insurance market, and premiums and commissions Whlst its
underwnting agency operations are not directly responsible for clarms, claims costs do afect the level of prolit commission
that the Group receives

Further, the Group's intamational lacus {which 15 one of i1s most important sirengths) expases ils revenues to currency
fluctuations, mamly Stering/Dollar and Stering/Euro The Group has floating-rate borrowings i US Dollars, Australian
Dollars and Euros and 1s therefore also exposad 1o interast rala movements tn those currencies The Group has put in place
appropnate hedging stralegies to manage this nsk

The Group 15 ambiticus and seeks to grow by means ol acquisitions and organic growth Such activihes are inherently
uncertain, particularly star-up operations where the timing and quantum of revenue build-up cannct be forecast with
precision, and there is no developed hook of renewals The Group seeks to mintmsse such uncertanties with careful
business planning, due diligence and warranties

in all its principal operations, the Group 15 also exposed to regulatory nsk, and also an element of political nsk in certam
geagraphic regions, such as the Middle East and Latin Amenca

The Group uses a number of intemal performance indicators to monitor and assess its business In pariicular, renewal and
attriton rates are carefully reviewsd.

Financial risk management

The Group's financial nsk management objective 1s broadly to seek 1o make nather profit nor loss from exposure to currency
or interest rate nsks s polcy 1s to hinance working capital through ratained earnings and bank borrowings at prevailing
markel interest rates Acquisitions are funded through a combination of retained eamings, additional equity and appropnate
long-term finance

(1) Cash flow risi

The Group's working capial compnses principally debtors, crediters and cash as descnbed in note 1(1} It is the Group's
policy not to fund any Insurance transaction thereby nunimising any credit exposure attaching to these insurance batances
Insurance balances are denominated i vanous currencies, predominantly Sterling, US Dollars and Euros To minimise the
foreign exchange exposure the Group endeavours to match foreign currency assets with habilities of similar matunties and
vice versa. Where this 1s not possible, Group companies occasionally purchase appropriale hnancial instruments to cover
matanal exposures

(i) Liquidity risk

In order to maintain hquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing cperations and future developments, the
Group usas a mixture of long-term and short-term debt iinance

Further delails regarding the liquidity nsk can be found in note 28 in the financial statements

(i) Credit risk

The Group's pnncipal financial assets are cash, trade and other receivables and investments The amounts presented in the
statement of financial position are nel of allowances for doubtful receivables An allowance for impairment is made where
there i1s an identdied loss event which, based on previous experience, 1s evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of cash
flows. With regards to insurance balances, the Group's nsk s hmited as the Group acts as the agent on these transactions
Further infarmation on insurance balances recevable and the nsk relating to these balances can be found In the statement
of accounting policies in the financial statements

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers.

The credit nsk on hquid funds and denvative financial instruments 1s imited as the counterperties are the Group's bankers
with hugh credit-ratings assigned by interationat credit-rating agencies.
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STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

Going concern

The Group's business activities, intemal controls and nsk management structure, including details of ils financial instruments
and hedging activities, and its exposures to credit and hquidty nsks, are sel out above

The Group has adequate financial resources together with its business bemg geographically diverse As a consequence, the
directors believe that the Group i1s well placed {o manage Its business risks successfully.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concem basis in prepanng the annual report and accounts.

Employment policies

The Board racognises that the conlinuing success ot the Group depends on s employees and its ability to continue ta adopt
policies created to attract, mobvate and retain employees of the highest calibre

The Group i1s an equal oppertunittes employer and bases decisions on indvidual ability regardiess of race, refigion, gender,
age, sexual onentatron, or disability The Group's equal opportunities policy ts designed to ensurs that disabled persons are
given the same consideration as others when they apply for jobs, and enjoy the same traiing, career development and
prospects as other employees

The Group seeks to achiave a common awareness among Its employees of the financial and aconomic factors affecting the
business by consultation and effective empiloyee communication through a vanety of media

Environmental policy
The Group is commitied to reducing its impact on the environment

The Group remains committed to

»  mirumising energy, water and paper use,

+ optmistng waste recychng by providing facilities and encouraging pecple to recycle,

» reducing travef, encouraging people to communicate without travelling when practicable, and
=  ensunng appropriate regulatory compliance.

Suppliers

The Group does not currently subscnbe {o any code or standard on payment practice i1 1s the Group's policy, however, to
settle terms of payrment with those supphers when agreeing the lerms of each transaction, 1o ensure that those supplters are
made aware of the lerms of payment, and to abide by the terms of payment

The amount due to the Group's trade creditors at 30 September 2013 represented 30 days' average dailly purchases of
goods and services recaivad from those creditors

Charitable donations

During the year to 30 September 2013 the Group made cash donations of £13,306 (2012 £23,885) for the benefit of
chantable causes

No political donations were made by the Group dunng the year (2012 £24,000)
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Directors’ remuneration report

The Group’s remunaration pokcy 1S o ensure that the remunaration of employees and execulive directors enables it to
recruit, retain and motivate indivmduals of sufficient expertise and commitment fo further the success of 1he Group

The Remuneration Committee compnses salely independent non-executive direclors and has the following duhes.

(0 To determune and agree with the Board the framework or broad pobcy for the emuneration of the Company's
Chairman, CEO, and the Executive Direclors, the Company Secrelary and the members of the senior execulive
management team,

{n}) Indetermining such policy, to take into account ali factors which it deems necessary The objective of such policy shall
be to ensure that members of the executive management of the Company are provided with appropnate incentives to
encourage enhanced perormance and are, in a fawr and responsible manner, rewarded for ther individual
contnbutions to the success of the Group,

(m) Within the terms of the agreed policy and in consullation with the Chairman and/or CEO as appropnate
(a) determine the total indwidual remuneration package of each executwe director and other senigr execulives

whose contractual remuneration exceeds £250,000 per annum including bonuses, incentive payments and
share options or other share awards,

{b} review and approve the appomntments of all senior executives whose proposed contractual remuneration
exceeds £250,000 per annum, and

{c) review and approve Bonus Plans and any remuneration policies adopled by subsidiary companies

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

il ﬁm\’

'G Pallot
Secretary

8% pocomber 2013
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annua! Report and the financial stalements in accordance with apphcable faw
and regulations

Company law raquires the directars to prepare financial statements for each financtal year Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and the parent company financial statemants in accordance with United Kingdom Genaerally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Umted Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors
must not approve a Company's financ:al statements unless thay are salisfied that thay give a true and fair view of the stale
of affairs of the Cormpany and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the diractors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgments and accounling estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

s state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been lollowed, subject o any malenal departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it 1s nappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue 1n business

in prepanng the Group financial stalements, Intematignal Accounting Standard 1 requires that direclors

» properly select and apply accounting palicies,

+ present information, including accounting policies, i1 a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable informatian,

=  provide addiional disclosures when compliance with the specific requrements in IFASs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and condilions on the entity’s financial position and
financial performance, and

= make an assessment of the Company's abilty to continue as a going concemn

The drrectors are responsible lor keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that lhe financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence lor taking reasonabla steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other wregulanties

The diractors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegrity of the Group websits, www hypenongrp.com Legistation in
the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may ditier fram legislation i other
jurisdictions

The dirsctors confirm that, to the best of each person’s knowledge
s the Group financial staternents, which hava been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true
and fairr view of the assets, liabilties, financial position and profit of the Group; and

« the direclors’ report includes a fair review of the development and perfarmance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a descnption of the principal nsks and unceraintes that i faces

10




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

We have audiled the Group financial statements of Hypenon Insurance Group Limited for the year ended 30 September

2013 which compnse the Conschdaled Income Statement, the Consohdaled Statement of Comprehensive Income, the

Consolidated Statement of Financial Posiion, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash

Flow Statement, and the related notes 1 to 40 The financial reporling framework that has been apphed in their preparation 1s |
applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

This report Is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2008 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are
required to state o them in an audilor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’'s members as a bedy, for our audil
waork, for thus report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibllities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Direclors’ Responsibilties Stalement, the direclors are respongble for the preparation of the
Group financial statements and for being satsfied Ihat they give a true and far view OQur responsibility is to audit and
express an opinion on the Group financial statements i accordance with apphicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiiing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audil involves oblaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance tha! the financial statements are free from matena) missiatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequalely disclosed, the reasonableness of signsficant accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overall preseniation of the financial slatements [n addition, we read all the financtal and non-financial
informalion in the annual report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financia! statements and to entify any
information that is apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit  If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our repor

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the Group financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 September 2013 and of ils profit for the year then
ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the European Unilon, and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparues Act 2006

Opinlon on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Direciors’ Repont for the financial year for which the

Group financial stalements are prepared is consistent with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following malters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
in our opinion

e cerain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for cur audit

Other matters

We have reporied separately on the parent company financial statements of Hypenon Insurance Group Limited for the year
ended 30 September 2013

N

Dawid Rush (Senior Statutory Auditor) {§ December2013
for and on behalf of Deloilte LLP

Charlered Accountants and Statulory Auditor

London, Uniled Kingdom

"




Hyperion Insurance Group Limited

CONSOUIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2013

Yaor end Year end
30 September 30 Seotember
2013 2012
£'000 £000
Notos
Continuing operations
Faes and commisslons 3 163,601 108 919
Other operating ncome 3,04 1,650
Other opafaling costs 134,7122) {94,999
Deprechilion and amortisaton 4 (5,985) (3062)
Opearating profia 25,908 12,508
Ananlysed aa
Opearmting profit before non recurring lema 29,895 17.531
Acquisition costs 4 {918) {1,743
Nuon recurring flems 4 3,069] (3.260)
Gporoting profit 25,908 12508
Financa income S 177 15
Finance costs 5 {,110) (4,168}
Profit belore changss in ths (air value of defermed conskiamtion 18,975 8,455
Changes in the fair valug cf aaferred consgaraton 5 (3,098) (1,503)
Profit bafora tax for the year 15,477 6952
Inctime ‘ax axpense 7 {5773} (3,8587)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 10,104 30565
Dlscontinued operations
Prot aftar tax from disconinued cperations 39 57 1,580
{Loss)/profit on sale of invesimants 15 (287) 17,123
Impawmment of non-knancial assets . (1.196)
Total discontinued operations {230) 17,507
Profit aftor tax 9,874 20572
Profit atiributable to
Group sharaholders 7,070 18 427
Mnority intaresls 2.804 2145
9.674 20 572

Tumaover and oparating profil lor the year argse nom contnuing aperalions, discontinued operations have bean separataly discicsed
The noles on pagas 53 (o 98 form an integral pan of these consolidated nancial statermants




Hyperion Insurenca Group Limitad

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2013

Earnings per share attributable to the aquity holders of the Company during the year

From coentinuing cperations

Eamings per share - basic

Baloro falr value ad| on dal considasalion - basic

Betom [aw value adjusiments on dalanad considerabon and Non recunmyg costs

Belom fak valus adjusiments on daferrad consideration and nen recurmy costs and acquistion cosis

From discontinued oparations

Eamings per share - basic

Batore lak value adjusiments on deferrad consideration - basic

Belkare lax value adiustments on delermad consideralion and proft on disposal - basic

From continuing and discontinued oparations

Eamings per share - basic

Balore lair valua adjusiments on daferred considaraton - basic

Balore 1air value agjusiments on defarred consilaration and profd on tsposal - basic

Nolas

Yosr ended 30 Year ended 30
September September
2011 2012
£ 000 £ 000
144p 21
20.5p 55p
25.1p 110
269 150p
10.5p) 39.5p
©.5p) 335p
Dip 3 Ep
139p 416p
20.0p 450p
26.8p 18.5p




Hyparion mserance Group Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 230 SEFTEMBER 2013

Profit {or the year

Qther comprahensive income

Revalsaton aof cash flow hedgng msinmmants
Ravaluabon of intangibile assets

Transtation of forgign openations

Other comprehensive Incoma for the year

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profits atnbutable to

Group shareholders

Mnorily interasts

Compmehensive income for the year arnsa from contnuing operations only

Notea

a8y

Yaorended 30 Yoar endsd 20
Septamber Septembear

2013 2012
£000 £000
5074 30572
s22 444
an .
1.107m) (220)
(535 54
9378 20 728
8622 18,581
2,707 2145
9128 20 726




Hyponon insurance Geoup Limdad

Non-current asssts

Goodwtl

Intangile assels

Property, plant ind equmment
tnvastmants haid al cost
tnvestmenis in assocates
Trada and other recewvables
Dalsmrad tax assals

Cumrant assots

Trade and othet racewables

Cash and cash equivalents
Insuranca cash and cash equivalents
Denvalive fnancal nstuments

Current liabllities

Insursnca payables

Trade ang othar payablas
Bank averdrall

Cormporaton Lax peyable
Bomwings

Denvative financial matruments
Prowsions

Nat currant assats

Non-current labilties
Borowngs

Trade and other payables
Dafemed tax habibes

Denvatve | instruments

Liquidity put opben

Total nei assets

Equity

Issued share capital
Share pramum

Other reserves
Liquuhity put opuon
Retaned earmngs
Sharsholdars' equity

Minority interests

Total equlty

17
17
18
7
19

19

24

f L

25

26

CONSDUDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2013

2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
122933 116,008
26,890 25,450
10,551 9292
1822 1073
353 .
139 a2
2,402 2185
184,208 154 160
81,924 39 949
18,4801 23175
154,653 113 488
865 816
236,344 177 428
(152,768) {106,888)
(27,093) (29,705)
{566) 1278)
{5,241) {4,124)
(22,801) (3378}
(83N (3578)
{1,518) {877}
[210,724) (148 626}
75,620 28 802
(88,674) (77.438)
{2415} (3.150}
{6.347) (6258}
{19,784) {10,057)
{45 489) (48,118}
{185, 706) {145022)
24,812 37 940
494 568
60,005 60 146
(16.177) {5 069)
{48,110) (48 118)
22,588 27,485
18.192 34 556
6,620 2,984
74812 37 940

Thejfiancial flatsments wers approved by the Board of Diractors and authonsed for ssua on 18 Decembar 2013 They were sgned on its behalf by

D P Howdan
Chuof exatulive

Company Numbaer 2837398




Hypedon Insurance Group Limited

FiOk]

Aan st 1 October 2012

Profil lor the year

Translation of loreign operations
Movement in cash tlow hadging
Instryments

Ravalualion of assals

Other Comprahensive incomo for the yoar
Total Comprehensive incoma for tha year
Diavidends paid

lasus of shares

Net movemant n shares held by Employae
Benefit Trust

Repurchase of share capital {(Ncte 25)

Arising on acquisition and disposals
As at 30 Septembar 2013

2012

As at 1 October 2011

Profit tor the ysar

T lation of fareign op

Mavament in cash flow hedging
instrumenis

Other Comprehansive incoma lor the years
Tetal Comprahensive income {or the yaar
Dwilends paid

Issua of shares

MNel movemnent in shares hald by Emgioyse
Benetl Trust

Artsing on acqulisition and dispesals

A3 at 30 Saptember 2012

CONSOQLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORA THE YEAR ENOQED 30 SEPTEMBEA 2013

Share Liquidity Tolat
Callad up pramium  put option Dther Relsined  shareholdom Minority

share capital account rssarve resarves eamings Equity Intarests Total equity
£009 £'000 £000 £'geo £ono £'eng £ 009 L£'ouo
508 60,146 {48,118) 15.,069) 27489 34,956 2.9a82 37940

- - - . 1070 7,070 2.804 2874

- - - (1,010) - (1,010} {97} (1,107)

- - . 522 . 522 522

- - . ki - 29 - 29

) - hd (449) b {449} 97} {546)

. - . {449) 070 6,621 2707 9,328
- - » - {1981) {19391} {1.194) {3,185}

10 1,441 - - - 1451 1451

{5) {1,582} - 832 - (755) {755)
{19) . 19 {3.980) {9.980] {9 980)

- - - (12,110) - (312,110} 2123 (9.987)

494 60,005 {48,118} (16.777) 22500 10,192 5.620 24,812

Share Liquidity Total
Called up pramium  put option Othar Reaisinad  shareholders Minority

share capital account sarve cRBarveD samings Equity intsrosts Total oquity
£'000 £'000 <000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
422 35,140 - (2.418) 10,262 43,406 2,770 7176

- - - 18,427 18 427 2,145 20,572

- - {276) - (76 196 8

. 444 - 444 444

. . 167 167 196 364

- 167 18,427 18,554 23414 20,935
. - {1.200) {1.200) (700) (1,500)

a3 24,795 . . - 24878 - 24878

3 1 . . . 214 - 214
(48,118) {2 818) . {50 937) {2.428) {53 364)

508 60,148 {48,118} ii,nso) 27489 34,956 2,984 37,840




Hypariar Insurance Group Lenitad

CONSQUIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2013

Cash flow from aperating actlvities
Cash maceipts from customers.

Cash recaipts from Migation ssttiement
Cash pald lo suppliers and employess
Cash genamied from cparations

Corporailon tax paymants
Interast paid
interost recalved

Net cash gensrated from operating sclivities

Cash flowa from Investing activities
Purchasa ol property plant and equipmeani
Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in associates

Cash on acquisition of subsidiary
Proceeds from disposal of operstions
Acquisition g! nen-controtng ilerasts
Acquisttion of ather aquity nvastments
Nat cash used in investing activilies

Cash flows from financing activithes
Satfernent ol delerred considaralion obligabons
Acquistion cosis

Drawdown of shatehoidsr loans

issug of othar bomowings

Purchase of own shares - employee share schama
Repurchase of share capital

Proceads frorn issue of shara capital

Frnance leasa capital repayments

Dividends payable to non-contralng sharehokders
Dawvidengs pad

Net cash (used inyirom financing acilvities

Net {decreasa)increase in own cash and cash equivalenta
Cash and caah equlvalents al 1 October 2012
Cash and caah squivalents at 30 Seplambar 2013

Insurance cash at beginning of period
Netinsurance cash inflow for the period
Insurance cash at end of period from cantinuing sperations

Nole

33

1B

16

2012 2012
£000 £000
155,201 108 869
1,010 -
(129,402) (88 572)
16,509 20 297
(5,057) {5,335}
(6,179) (6.012)
100 150
5673 9,160
(3.459) 2761
277) (52.284)
(353) -
&72 5,802
n 20,610
(174) -
11 -
16 221) (28 233)
(5,865) {4,450)
(1,150) {1,742}
583 4918
18,213 34,053
(2,408) -
(10,073) -
-1 -
@ *12)
(1,203) (563)
{1,991) {1 200)
[FRELT] Iy
(4,661} 11,270
22 897 11,627
18,235 22897
113,408 57,643
41,165 55 B4S
164,653 113,488

Cash flows for the year arpse fram continuad and distontnued eparations Refer to Note 39 for dalail of the cash fiows of the discentinued operations

17



Hyperion Insurance Group Limited

Notea 1o ths Fi Lml xbmt N
For tha year ended 30 Seplember 2013

1 Accounting palicies
Tha principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of thase consolidated financial statements are set culbalow

(a) Accounting convention
St of pllance with IFRS

The Group has prepared its consolidatad Jnancial statemants in accordance with Internationsl Fnanctal Reportng Standards (IFASs) as adopled by the Eurcpean Unlon
IFASs comprise standands and intergretations approved by the inlemational Accountng Standards Board JASB) and the Intemational Fmanclal Reporing intempratabions
Committaa {IFRIC) a5 adopted in the European Union that are eNectiva for years endmg on 30 Saplamber 2013, or which have been adopled early

Overall consideration

Tha consoldatad financial statements have been prepared on the hisiorcal cost basis, excopt lor the revaluation of Inancial mstruments and darivative financial nstruments
Histgrical cost is generally basad on the fair value of the consideration gven in axchanga for the assels

Tha signidicant accountng palicw s that have been applied in the prepamtion of thase consobgated inancial statements ara summarisad below The actouning policies have
been used throughout all the parods presanted In the financial statemants

Going Concam

Furthar information regardng the Group's business actvilies, logsther with tha lactors likefy to affect its future deveioprnent performance and poshion are sel oul in the
Directors’ Repont Tha nancial position of the Group its cash flows, liquidity postiion and borrowing facddies are describad in the notes to the accounts in addition, note 28
to e hnancial statements includes the Group s fnancia! fisk managemant objactivas, detalls ol its financlat instruments and hedging activiles, and ita 8xposures to cradit
risk and liquidity risk

Having considered the afaregoing, and aher making enquiries, thae diractors have a reasonable expectation that tha Company and the Group have adequalp resounces |0
contnue in operational ezis! for the f ble futurg Accoramgly, thay continue to adopt tha Qoing concem basls i preparing tha consolidated financial stataments

Presentation of financial 18 in accor with IAS 1 (Revised 2007)

The consolidated hnancial stataments are prapared in accordance with IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statemants' (Flevised 2007) The Group has elected to prasant the
“Staternent of Comprahensiva incoma in two stalements the ‘tncome Statement’ and the ‘Statemeant of Comprahensive Income’

The consolidatad cash flow statemant has been prepared showing separatsly corparate funds, being tha Group 8 own cash balances, and insurance lunds, being funds hed
an bahat! of chents and insurars in Non-statutery trust accounts The Group has changed s presantation format ol the Statement of Cash Flows lrom tha indirac! to the direct
method All comparative amounts have bean restated

Adoption of new Intamational Financial Repaorting Standards {'Standards’)

At the date of the authorisaton of the consofidalad fmanclal statements the fotlowing Standards and Interpratations wara n ssus but not yat mandatory and have not baan
apphad in the consclidated mancial statemenis

IFAS 9 'Fnancial mstruments’, mandatory effecive date has yet to be confrmad,

IFRS 10 'Consclidated Mancial siatements, effectve for annual perinds beginning on or aftar 1 January 2013,

IFAS 11 'Joint arrangements’, alfective lor annual pariods beginning on cor after 1 January 2013,

IFAS 12 'Disclosures of intsrasts in other entities | elfective for annual periods beginning on of atter 1 January 201,

IFRS 13 'Fak valua measuremanl ellective for annual pariods baginning on or alter 1 January 2013

IAS 19 'Employas Ranelils , affactve lor annual pariods beginning on or altar 1 January 2013,

|AS 27 *Separate financial slatements {2011). eflective for annual perods begrning on or aftar 1 January 2013, and

|AS 28 'Investments In associates and [oint venturas’ (201 1), allectiva {or annual pariods bagnning on ar atter  Jeauary 2013

At tha date of the authorisation of the consolidated Gnancial statements, the foliowing amandments (o standards and mierpretations were in issue but not yet mandatory and
have not been appled in tha consolidated financial statements

1AS 32 'Financial Instruments Prasantation’, elfactive far annual periods bagnning on or aftar 1 January 2013

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Inlerpratalions and dments to Interpratations and standards will have a matedal impact on the
Group's congelidated financial statemnents in fulure perods

{b) Basis of congolidation

The Group's [nancial statements consolidate e financlal statements of the Company and ts subsidiary undertakings for tha year ended 30 September usng the soquisition
method The results of acquired businessaes are consalidated from the date on which the Group obtams eflective control of the subskiary

Subsidiaries are entties where the Company has the powar lo control the financial and operatng paticies, ganaraly accompanied by a share of more than halt of the voting
rights Unrealised gains and lossas on transachons with subskiiarias or associales ame elminated Transactions wih associales ara efminated to the extent ol the Group's
interast in those entties n preparing the consolidated financial slatements




Hyparion insurance Group Limdad
1 Accounting pelicies {continued)

{c) Businass combinations

The acquisitions of subsidaries ara accounted for using the acquisition method The cost of acqusition 18 measurad as the fair value of asssi given, liabiities Incurrad or
assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group at the data of exchange Any costs directly attnbutabla 1o the business combnation are booked 10 the income
statement as incurred Identfiable assals acquirad and abidtias and contingan fabilites essumad, meating tha conditions lor recagnition undar IFAS 3 'Business
Combinations', are recognised at thekr fair valus at the acquitiion date, frespective cf the axtent of any minority intarest. The excesa ol the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of tha Group’s share of ths idenufiabi net assels acquirad is recorded a3 goodwil! Subsequeni changas in such falr vatues ara adjosted against tha cost of acquisiton
whare they qualily as measuremant pariod adjustmants Tha measuremant pariod is the perod lrom the date of acquishion to the dats the Group obitains completa
infermation about lacts and cicumstances that exisied as of the acquisition date and is subject to a maximum of one year Al other subsagquent changes in the fakr value of
contingent considaration classtied as an assel o llability ars accounted for in eccordanca with relgvant IFRSs

{d) investments in associates

Associates are those antibas over which the Group is able 10 exert signilicant influence bul which are nelther subsidiaries nor interasts in a ont vertlure Investmants in
associates are inillally recognesad at cost and subsaquantly accounted lor using the equity mathod

{¢) Operating profit
Operaling profit is stated belorg finance ncomy, finance costs and changes in the tair vahue of delerred consideration

{N Foreian currencles

ltems inckuded n the financial stalemants of each of the Group's entibes are measured In the currancy of the pranary economic environment n which ¢ cparales (ts
functional cutrancy) The consolidated imancial statements are presented in pounds stering which is tha presantabon currency of the Group

The results of the foreign subsdiaries have been transiated using the average of manthly exchange rates Assets and labilties of cverseas subsidiaries denominated in
loraign cumencias are translaled at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheat date, profts and losses are translatad into pounas steriryg st aversge exchange ratas for
the relavant eccounting periods Exchange ditferences arising, if any are racognised in other comprehensive income and transierred 10 the ranstation resarve On the sale
ol a sutsidiary, such translation differences are recognised as income cr expansas in the perod in which the operation ks dispesad ot

tg) Revenue recognition

Revanue consists principatly of brokerage, commissions and teas associaled with the placement of insurance and reinsurance contracts nalof commissions payabia o
other duactly involved parties Revenues from brokerage, commisslons and fees are recognisad on the incaption date of the nsk  Any adjustments to commissicons arising
from premium addiions or reduckons are recognised as and when they are notdied by thind partes

Whera contractuat cbligations exist far the pedfomance of post placernent actvities and tha cosl of these actvities Is not expacied 1o be covenad by luture revenus, a
ralavnt proportion of revenue teceived on placemaent is dafarred and recognisad over the period during which the activities are padormad

Prolit commission is recognisod when the amount can be estimaled, with a reasonable degreo of cartainty, and is équnalant to the minmum value expected to be recsivad
Interest income i recognised when Ris probable that the economic benekis will Bow 1o the Group and the amount of revanue can be measured reliakly

(b} Dizcontinusd nperatians and non-cumrant axsets hald fcr sale

Non-current assats (and disposal groups) classitiad as held for sale and disconlinued oparations, are measyrad at the Wwer of camying amount and fakr value less costs to
sall.

Non cunént asseta and disprosal groups ars classified as hald for sale ff thelr carrying amount will be rezgvered through a sale tansaction rther than through contmuing
use This condhon Is ragarded aa mat only when the saia is highly probably end the assat (or disposal group) is avadable tor immediate sak in its present condriion
Managament must ba commitied to the sala which should be axpaciad to qualdy for recognition as a compilated salo withs one yoar from the date of classHication

A discontinued oparation is 8 component of an enbity that ether has been disposed ol, or thal is classiied as hak? for sale and (a) represents a separate majer kne of
busness or geographicat area of operations end (b) is a part of & single coordinated plan 1o dispose of a separale ma,or Ine of business or prographical zrea of operations
or{c) is B subsidiary acquired exchusively with a view to resate

Any gain or loss lrom disposal of a business together with the results of these operations unil the data of dispasal, is raportad ssparataly as dscaontinuad oparations The
financial information of discontinued operaticns ks excludad from tha respective caplicns in the censolidated financial statamants and retated notes for all years presented

(1) Goodwisl
Goodwil ep ts the difi beh the cost ol acquisitions and tha Group's interast in the lair value of the idsniflablo assels and Habtiues of he business

combinations al the dales of the acquisiions Goodwil is initially recognised ai cost and 18 subsequently reviewad for impeisment annually Any lmpairment is recognised
immadiataly in the incoma statement,

Goodwill ansing on acquistions betors the data of transition 1o IFRSs has bean relained at tha previous UK GAAP vatue subject to beng lesied for impainmnant at that dats
Goodwill written off to raserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been renstated and is not ncluded n determining any subseguent profit of loss on dsposal. All
nagative goodwill was elminated on transdion to IFRS

Tra Group has determined that lor the purposes of Impaimment lestng, goodwi! is aflocated to each of the Group 3 subsidiary entties or, # uther analysis is required, the
Group's cash-generating units Cash-generating units io which goodwil has been allocatad are tesiod for impaimment annually Recoverable amounts for cash-ganaerating
units are mainly based on valug in use, which s calculated rom cash flow projecticns from the Group s latest intemal lorecasts Tha key faciors in the value in use
cakulations are discount rates and astrmates of luture cash flows H tha recoverable amount of the unit Is lass than the carrying amaunt of the goodwill the impairmant lass
is afiocated lo reduca the camyng amount of ary goodwill aliocated (o the unit An mnpalment loss recognised lor goodwill s not reversed in a subsequant period

Acquistions of non-controliing interests are accounted for as ransactions with equity holders in thalr capacity s equity holders and theredore no goodwill is recognsed as a
rasult of sych transactons




Hyperian tnsurarice Group Limied

1A ting policies { inued)
{j} Intangible nasets
Computer software

Acquirad computer soltware Bcences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use ta specific software Thase costs are amortised over thelr
estenated usehl ves of up 1o 10 yedrs Costs asseciated with maintaining computer softwara programmag era recopnised as an expense as incurred Costs that are directly
associated with the production of identfiable and unigue software products centrolied by the Group and that will generate economic bensfits excasdng cos!s bayond ane
yoar oo recognised ag intangible assets Drect costs include empiloyea costs directly attrbutatle to the development ¢of soitware

Customer relatlonship ired in busai combinations

.

Customar relationships such as access 1o cistnbution: networks and customar lists thal arisa becausa tha acquires company has a practice of astabiishing nsurance
contracts with its customens are measured &t falf vaiue at the date of business combination The falr valus of cuslomer relationships is datermined vsing a discounted cash
fiow analysis Best estmate assumptlions for rengwa’ rates and expenses are used in caicuiating the falr value Customer raiationships are smariised ovar tha period over
which benefits are expected o ba derivad from these relationships Customer relationships ara reviewed annuatl for impatrmeant

Other intangihle anaats

Other intangile assels comprise brands and other acquited identflable non-monatary assets without physical fom these include non-compéts contracts and brand names
that have bean recognised on the acquisition of subsidiares Other intangila assats are carriad at cost less accumulated amartisation Amoriisation on other intangible
assels is calculated using the siraight ine method to allocate the cost over ihelr astmaled usetul ives, which is nomally estimated 1o be between five and ten years

{k) Employas benafita
Dafined contribution schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contribulion schemas The amourd charged ‘a tha income statament In respect of pension costs and other post-retirement benalis
{s tha contributions payabie in tha year Dilferences batwaen coniributions payabls In the year and contnbutions aciually pald ame shown as eithar accruals or prapaymants in
the statermont of financial postion The Group has no fagal or constructive obigation to make any lurther payments lo the schemes other then the conirbutions due

Delined benefit schemes

The Group has a legacy defined benefit pansion scheme which is closed 10 naw members and which has one delned i Full actuanal vatuations of he schema arg
camied out at Jeast every three years A qualfied independent actuary updaled these valuations as al 30 September 2013 For the purposes of these annual updates
scheme assels are included at market value and scheme Eablities am measured on an actuarial basis using the projactad unt method The delined baneft surplus or deficit
is ncluded in the Group's statement of financlat position A surplus is included only lo the extent that it is racoverable through reduced contnbutions i the future or through
rafunds from the schema The cutrent service cost, any past sesvica costa and the axpectad ratum on the schemd's assets net of the mpac! of the unwinding o the
discount on schame kabiites, are included in the income statement. Actyarial gains and lossas, incheding differences between the expectad and aclual relum on schama
asssls, are recognised through the statement of comprahensive income

{1} Financial iInstrumants

Financial assats and financlal liablities are recegnised when tha Group becomes a party 1o the coniractual provisions of the financtal instrument. Financial assels an
daracognised when the contractual rights to the cash fiows from the financial assets expire, or when the financlal asset and all substantal risks and rewards are transfamed
A financial Eability Is derecognised whaen & is extinguished, dischargad, cancalled or expires

Financial assets and inancial Kabilities are measured inillafly at tair valug plus ransaction costs, except for inancial assels and inanciat ¥ablities carriad al fair vatue through
profit or loss, which are maasurad intially at fair value Financlal assels and Eabilibes are measured subsequently as tescribed balow

Financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, inancial assats oiher than thossa designated and etfective as hedgeg mstrurnents are classrfied a3 kians and receivables and
hnanclal assets at {air value through proft or lkess

The catagory determninesa subsequent measurementt and whather any resullig mcome and expensa Is recognised in proftt or lpss or in othar camprahensive income
Loans and receivables

Loans and recaivables ar nun-denvitive fmanciat assets with fixed or daterminable payments that are not quoted n an actve markat Afiar indial recogniton thesa are
measurad at amartised cost ysing the effective interast method, less provision lor impakrment Discounting is cmitted where the eifect of discounting 1s immaiarial. The
Group's cash and cash equivalants and trade and other receivables fafl ito mis category of inancial ingtruments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels at fais valua Brrough probit of l0ss nclude financial assets that are either classified as held lor tradng or that meet certain condilons and ara deskgnated at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recogrition Al derivative financis! nstruments fall into this category, excapt for those dasignated and stfecive as hedgng
instiments for which hadge accotenting Is applied

Assats in this calegory are measurad at falr value with the gains and losses recognisad In profit and loss The fas vakies of denvative financial mstruments are determined
by aference (o sxpocied future payments

Financial Habilities

The Group’s fmancial Babiities mclude borowings, trade and other payables, daferred and conlingani consiaration, ang derivatve financial nstrymaents Financlal fablities
am measured subsequanty al amorised cost using the efiactive intarest methed, axcept for financial habiktia s hald lor trading or designatad at fair valye through profit or
ioss, which are camed subsequantly at fak valus through profit of loss ANl derivative financial instruments that are not designaled and effective as hedging instruments are
accounted for at fair value with gans and losses recognised in the income statemant All changes in an nstrum ent's lak value that ara rapontad in profit or loss are
separately disclosad in the ncome statement

Trade and othar payaties
Trade payables are iitially maeasurad at fair vatue and subsegquently measured at amortised cost.
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1A ing policies (continuad)

)

Bamowings
Bomowings are indially measured ot lar vahse, net of tansaction costs ncumed Thay are subsegquently measured at amortised cost using the sffactive interest
rata method

Impairment of financial assots

ARfinancial assals axcep! those at lak value thiough profit or oss are sublect to review for impatmmenl at least at each reporing date  Financh! assets are impalrad whan
thare ks any objaciive evidence that a Bnanchil assal or a group of fnancial essats i impawad Cierent crtarla for the datarmnation of mpakment are eppEad for sach
category of inancial assets The Group s inancal assets am bmited to loans end recervables and fnancial assets at faw vakie through proft o loss

Indwvidual recervables ars considerad for impainment whan they aze past dus or wharn otitar objaciive avidence s ecelved that a specihc counterparty will defautt impairment
of rade receivables ks prasentad withn other oparating cosis’

{m) Derivative financlal instruments

Tha Group anly enters into dervalve inancial instruments in order to hadge undarlying commercial exposuras The Group dasignales cerlan deralives as edher hedges of
fair value of recognised assets or Habites or & firn commitment (far value hedge), or hecges of highly probable lorecast transactions {cash flow hodges)

The Group currenlly has cash fiow hadges onty, relabng 1o intersst rats and toraign exchange risk managemant Al the fception of the transaction tha relalionshyp between
heoging astruments and hedged lems, a5 woll 83 the Group's sk management objoctve and sirategy for undanaking varicus hadge transactions ara documantad

Assessments, both at hadge inception and on an on-guing basis of whether the derivatives that are used in hadging ransactions have been and will continue to be highly
affectiva in olisettrg changos in fakr vatues or cash Sow hedged Bems, are also documented.

The affective portion of the changes in o lalr valuo of derivalives thal ane dasignated and gualily s cash flow hedgss Is racognised in a hadga reserve in gqurty The gain
or loss b relation to the neftective portion is recogrised immedtiately kn the Consobdatec Stataman: of Comprahansive Income Amounts accumutated n the hedge reserve
in equity ame Wranslened 1o the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income in the periods when tha hadged Ham will atiect profit and loss

Whan a hedging nstrurhont expires or Is scld, or when a hadgae no longar meels the critaria for hedge rccounting, any cumulative gam or l0ss existing in equity et thal g
remains in the hadging reserves and is racognised in tha sama pariods dumg which the hedgad commitment of lorecast ransaction affacts he incoma siatement When a
hedged commiment or lotecast transaction is no longer expacied to occur, the cumulative gam or loss that was reported m equity is mmediaisty transiered to the income
stalarmant,

{n}) Sharo-based payment

The Group Ssues share awards 1o employees The Group operaies a number of share based compensation schemes and apglies the regquiremants of IFRS 2 'Share based
Payments’

The cosi of employess’ sarvices raceivad n exchanges lor the grant of rights under thess schemas Is measured al the fair value of the equity nstruments granted and is
charged againsi prsins over the vesting period  Far cash settied schemes the Rk value ks ra-assessed each year and any changes are racognised n the income statement
untd the liabikty ls satded

{0} Leasss

tn accordance with IAS 17 Leasas' where e Group has substantizlly all the risks and rewards of cwnership leases are classdisd as finance kases Foance lsasas ara
capitalised at the loase s inception gt tha lower of the fair value ¢f the leasad assat and the present vahse of the minenum loass payments Each leass payment Is allocated
between the Habiity and finance charges 0 a3 io achiava a constant rate on the tinance balance outstanding

Tha asset subject to the [nance lease Is depraciated over the sharter of ks uselul kfe and the laase term The coresponding rental obBgations net of finance chargas, are
recognizad as a Rabilty

AR other leasss ara trealad as operating leases Payments made undar operatng leases are charged 4 the incomo statement on a stralght-ine basis ovar the leasa tem
Incenivas provided by the lessor are cradied 1o the income statement on a strailghl-ine basts over the fuli lease tarm

{p) Property, plant and squipment

Property, plant and equipment & stated at cost less accumulatad depreciation and impaimment losses Cost includes axpanditurs that ks dirscty attrbutab 16 the acquisition
of construction of these tems Subsoquent cOsts am ncluded in the assel’s camying emownt only when it Is probabie hat future sconomic benafits associated with the Hem

will fiow 10 the Group and e Costs can ba measused reliably AP oner costs, including rapairs 8nd maintenanca costs, ara chargsd to tha mcome siatament in the perlod in
which they are mcuned

Dopsociaton i provided on ofl property, pant and equipment, intluding those assets held undas financa leases, al rales calculated o wiita off he cost of fixed assets lass
their estimated residual value ovar their axpscied uselul (ves on the loflowing basas

Leasahokt improvemants - Crvar tha laasa period
Fumbture fixures and fittngs 5 years (o 10 yeers
Computer hardwarm - 4 yoars [0 5 years
Computer software - 3 years 1o 10 years

Mator vahiclas « 4 years

The assets uselul ives and residual vakses are reviewed ang, if appropriate, adjusted Bt sach batance shesl date
The gain or la3s anising on diaposal or scrapping of an assat is recognised in the income Statement,

{q}insurpace intormadiary assets and liahities

Insurence brokers act as agenis n placing tha insurabie risks of thelr chents with insurers and as such, generally are not Kable as principals (or the amounts arising trom
such transactions Accordngly receivables arisng from insurance broking transactions are not included as assets of the Group Other than the receivabie for fees end
commbssions sarnad on tho Bnsaction which is recognised within trade racaivables no recognition of he insurance transaction occurs untl he Group recalves cash in
raspect of pramiums or claims, at which time a comesponding fabidy is estabkshad in favour of the insurer of tha client and racognised on the statement of fnancial pasibon
as Nsuranca payables

Fiducary cesh arising from insurance broking transactions ks incivded withn insuranca cash Theg Group Is entitiad (o ratan the Investmant income on any cash flows arising
from insurance retated transactions
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{r} Dividand distribution
Equity dividends declared ai the discralion of the Company are recognised In the parod m which thay are declared and approved by the Board
{8} Non-reciaring Rems

Non.recuiming dems are separately identdied lo provids graater understanding of the Group's undertying performenca llems classified a3 non-recurring tems include
closure costs fof businessas, restructurng cosls acquisition costs, post acquisidion integration costs, wiide offs and other Cradds and charges of non-racufring nature that
requine separata identilication in order to provide additional insight into the undedying business performance To assist in the analysis and understanding of tha undartyng
trading position of tha Group thesa Hams are summarised in note 4

{t) Acquisition costs
Acquisiion related costs am costs the acquirer Incurs lo effect a business combination These inciude agal fags, Inder's fees, valuation cosis and cther professional o
consulfting fees which are axpensad in the period in which they are incunad

Ciner acquisthon costs incured which are direcily afirbutabie to obtaining finance in ordar to lund the acquisition are nol axpansed but included within the dabt balance Tha
costs ara then amortised (according 10 he efiactive inlerest rale mathod) through the income Stalsment over the perod of tha debt

{u) Taxation
Current lax Is he expacted iax payable on the taxablg income for the year, usng tax rales and laws enacted or substantively anacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustmentis 1o tax payable in respact of previous years

Deferrad 18xation is provided on material iming diierences batween the incidence of incomna and expenditure for tasation and accounts purposas using the full provision
basis Delarred 1ax assets are only recognised 10 the extent that they are considerod recoverable against uturs taxable profita Delarred tax batancss are nol discounied
Deferred tax is detammined using the tax rates thal have been enacted or sutistantively enacied by the balanca sheet dale, and are expectad to apply when the dalarred lax
Rability s sattiad or the defened tax asset Is realised

Changes in delsrmad tax assets or labiities are recognised as 8 component of tax expansa in the ncome statement, gxcep! where thay ratate to Mems that ere charged or
credited directly to equity In which case the relatad delerred tax is also charged or cradted directly 1o equity
The ncome tax expensa reprasents tha sum af current and defarred tax

{v) Treasury shares

Traasury shares ara deductad from aquity No gam or loss ks recognisad on the purchase sale issue or cancellation of the treasury shares Any consideration paid or
recaived is recognisad drectly in equlty

(w) Group reserves

Tho share pramium Account Is o diference betweon e nominal value of shares issued and the valua of the consdaration raceved The use of the shara premium
account is govemed by the Companies Act 2006

{x) Provisions

Pravisions are recognsed when he Group has a present obigation (legal or constiuctive] s & resuft of a past avent 1t Is probabla that the Group will be raquired o seltis
that obligation and a refable estimata can be mada of the amount of the cbbgation

Tha amount recognised as a provision Is the best esimale of the consideraton required 10 sattie the preseni obfigation a1 the balance sheel dats taking into account the
risks and uncertainties sumounding the obligation

2 Critical accounting estimates and judgemants

Estimates and sssoclated assumptions are basad on historical expesience {and varicus othar factars that ars bafleved 10 be reasonabie undsr tha cwcumstancas), the
rasults of which form tha basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assats and #ahiilies thal are nol readily apparent om othat S0urtes Actual rasulis may
difter from these estimates Tha estrnates and underying assumptions are raviawad on an ongong basis Revisions lo accountng estimates ara recognised in the genod in
which the estimale is revised i the ravision affscts only that period, o in tha period of the revisian and hiture periods f the revision altects both currant and futura pariods

The estmates and assumptions that have a signficant etiaci on tha canyng amounts of assets and labiies are
a) Property, plant and equpment

Assats are carried at historical cost less depreciation calkculaled to writa off tha cost of such assgls over thalr astimaied vselul bves Managemaent datarmnes the estmatod
usalul ives and related depreciation charges et acquisitioh The estimated uselut ile Is raviewed annually and the depreciation charge is revised wherg ysalul ives are
subsequently found to be diferani to those praviously astmated

b) impairmant of assets

Ass83sing the impairment of assats requiras of management o deterning the vaiug in use of assets beng considerad for impaimnent Datermining such a vats requies of
management ta foracasi future cash flows associatad with the assets, end 10 datenning an approprate discount rate 1o datarmne a prasent value for those cash flows

¢) Delermgd considoration
The value of deferrad considasatan payabls is contngent upon the rasulis of the acquirad businesses and any other speciied pericmancs criteria set out in the applicable
sol and purchasa agreaments Budgets and projections for acquirad businessas for ralevant perods am reviowad annually
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3 Segmental analysis

IFRS B ‘Opsrating Segments' requires aperating sagments to be detemuned based on the Group 8 inlemal reportnyg to the Chiel Operating Decision Maker ("CODM™} The
CODM has pean dotermnad to be the Board of Dirgctors, as it ks tws body which is pramarily cesponshis for g atiocation of resources 10 segnents and the assessment ol
parformance af the segments

The CODM uses Eamngs belore Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (*EBITDA"), a$ raviawed on 8 menthly basts, as the key measurs of the sagments’ resuns as
it refigcts the segments’ ungderying radng parigmmance for tha perod undar gvahuation

The dusciors consder that the Group s trading actvias comprise two businass sagments (being the provision of broking and underwritng sewices) and that the Group
operalas i a markel tha! is not bound by geographscal constrants. For management pu/Poses, e Group rapons its performance betwaen two fee stuctures being
“Underwrilng revenue’ end ‘Broking revenue Revanue information anakyang the afcramanbonsd split batwean undanwiting and broking is presented balow:

Hand oifice and
consolidation  Total contimdng
Yaar 10 30 Saptember 2013 Brong  Underwming  edjusiments operalions
£000 £000 £000 £000
Fees and commission 124,045 39,556 - 183 601
Omer cperatng hcome 1,608 1,408 - N4
Other operaling costs {104,783) (28 051) (1 888) {134,722}
Depraciation gnd amartisation (4633 77 (575} {5.985)
Operating profil 16,237 12,134 {2,483} 25,908
Fnance income: (28) )] 207 77
Financa costs {1,163) 92 {6,039} 7.110)
Chanpe in the falr value of deterred consideration (2 727 - (372 {3 098)
Prafit belors taxation 123 12,220 [9.666) 15877
Incoma tax expense {1 106) {2381) {1.286) (5.773)
Profit aftar taxstion 11,217 [} {9,552) 10,104
Minanty nterests {2 143) (661) - [2 804)
Net profit 9074 8,178 {9,952 7,368
EBITDA {sxcluding non-recurring and acquisition costs) 24,438 13,455 (2,011) 35,880
Nen-recurring costs {2,648) {544) 123 (3,069)
Acquisition costs {18} - - @18}
See note 4 lor 8 lurther analysis of non recuring costs
Head otfice and
fidabon  Total contimuing
Year to 30 September 2012 Broking Undarwriting adjustments operations
£000 £0900 £039 £'q00
Feea and commisskon 74,753 34,166 - 108,919
Othar operating incoma 378 1272 - 1,650
Othor operating costs (65.782) {21,571) {1,646} (94 939)
Depreciation and amortisation {1,604) (721) {737) {3.062)
Operaling profit 7.745 7,146 2.383) 12,508
Finance ncome (B4} (133} a2 115
Fnance casts (1721} {2) (2.445) {4.168)
Changa in the fair value of dalsrad consideration {1,503 - . {1,503
Profit belore taxation 4,457 7.011 4,518) 6.9
Wcome tax expense {2,146) (2.420) 679 {3887)
Frofit pfter taxaton 231 4,531 {3.837) 3,065
Mmnordly intarasts {1.881) [284) - (2,145)
Net prof 430 4337 {3,837} g2¢
EBITDA (exciuding non racurring and acquisition tams) 12,122 9,902 {1,433} 20,593
Naon-recurring costs (1030 {2 035) @15) 3,280)
Acguisition casts {1743 - - 4,743
Sas note 4 for a lurther anatysis of non.racurrm cosls
Geographic segment analysis
The geographical analysls has baen grovided for continuing opsrations only
Fues and commissions 2013 2012
£'000 £000
United Kingtdom 40,246 19,396
Amaricas 28 587 18,850
Northem Eurapa 22,392 16,983
Far East 24,70} 14,467
Australasia 19 587 14,388
Southem Europe 12,538 12,764
Middle East 12,549 10 453
Eastem Eutope 1811 1,220

Alrica 397

888
Total 163,601 106,919
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4 Operating profit

Operatng proid for the yeer Is stated aftar charging{crad ting)

Depreciation ¢f propesty, plant and aquipmenm
Amortisation of intangible nssots

Prolessional Fees in relation to tha Group's auddtor
Audit services
- statutory audst of the Company
- statutory audit of subsidiartes
- audh related reguiatary and supplementary raporing
Al other sarvices
- Taxation services
- Professional fees associated with othar advisory sarvigos

Opermling lease rentals
- land and byitdings
- aquipment

Foreign exchange gains

Non-recurring items recognised in lha income atatemant
Temination and replacemant of senlksr axecutives
Post-acquisition intagration costs

Caosts refated to the repurchase of share capital (sea Note 25)
Cosnts of tundamantal restructuring

Wrhg-off cosis

Goodwil impaltrment

Provision for claims

Provision {58 note 21)

Incramantal employee costs related to rafinancing
Othor non-recurring admintotrative sxpenses
Total non-recurring acdministrative sxpansas

Acquisition costs

Acquisition cosls in the perad are in retation 10 the acquisition of FP Group Limited and controfiad entties (tha 'FP Maring Group'), Northedge £

2013 2012
£:000 £000
2815 1,867
3,006 1,195
5,585 3662
L1 a7
502 469
20 44
745 272
875 750
5,090 3855
194 2
(558) (833}
2013 2012
t'000 £'0g0
83 1,504
811 280
394 .
2,068 1794
- 1,671
186 100
402 .
. {265)
a3 _
1,001 1,485
3,069 3280

Havwden 8rasll Administragdo o Corretagem De Saguros Ltda (‘Consat) and Howdan Employae Banelts Limitad Managemant have separataly presented those acqulsrtm

costs in the Income statement ta laciiate an understanding of the Group 5 undertying performance

FP Marine Group
Northadgae Forsikringsmagiing AS
Howdan Bras Adminisiragio a Corretagam Oe Segurns Lida
Howden Employea Banefits Cimitad
HBQ Asia Mokiings Lid and controlled enttes
Windsor Limitad and controlled entties
Howden Enargy Intanghle assots
Professiona! Risk Solutions LLC
Acquisition costs
Acquisitons costs pakd in raspect of priar year acquisilons
Total acgulsition costs paid

5 Finance coats

Interest expenseo

HSBC revolvng cradit lacility and ovardrait - repaid 3 July 2012

HSBC and Lioyrs sen'or facity

Finance wases

Other lcan tnterest

Amortisation of bank and kan arangement fees
Shareholdes loan intarast

Sharahoidar loan nols interast

intare st income
Bank intarest

Net fingnca costa from continuing operations
Net finance costs from discontinuing oparations
Nast finance costa rom operations

Falr vaiuo mrough proftt and loss - deferrad considaration (hote 23a)

Change in the talr vatue of deferred consideration

2013 2012
£000 £:000
759 =
54 .

8o 79

25

245

. 1,243

- 168

. 8

BiE 1743
232 :
1,950, 1743
2013 2012
£009 £000

- 1a65)
{2,790) 865)
(8 )
(376) {60)
(983) {B64)
{1,704) {915)
(247) {448)
7.110) {,188)

m 115
(5,933 (4053)

- 15
{6:933) {4038)
3,088 {1,503}
(3.0586) (1.503)
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6 Staft costa

The averaga monthly numbar of employees, including daactors, employed by the Group dumng the year was

Disactors and senior managamant
Insurance professionals
Administraton

The aggregate payroll casts cf the above employeas, Inchuding directors, were as folows

Wagas and salaries
Socia) secunty costs
Pensicn conanions

Dirgctors' ramunaration

Aggregate emoluments
Aggragata pension contributions

Highast paii director
Salary and benefits
Pension contrbutions

Number of diractors al 30 Septamber

Dunng te year ended 30 Seplember 2012 a Dwector recenvad £256 000 In total by way of compensabon for loss of office
T Taxstion

Tax axpenas comprisen

UK comporation tax on profits for tha year
UK ad|ustmants in respect of pravicus years
Overseas tax

Total current lax

Defarred tax

Qdgination and mversal of iming diferances
Impact of change in UK tax rate
Adiustments In respact of previous years
Total deferred tax {noto 24)

Tox on profit on ordinary activities

The total charga lof the year can be reconcilad to the aceayunting profit 23 follows
Tha tax assessad for tha year is highar than the standard raty of comporation 1ax of 23 5% {2012 25%) due to the followrg reasons

Prolit on erdnary activities befere tax
Prefil on ord:nary activibos multpbed by the standard rate ol egrporaten tax n the UK of 23 5% (2012 25%}

Tax affacts of

Expansgs nol deductible for Laxation purposes

Ovarseas tax in excess of UK tax

Tax kosses utised dumy the yhar

Adfustranis o UK tax charga in respect of pravious years
Adjustments lo overseas tax charge In respect ol pravious years
Impact of chango in UK 1ax raa

Total tax expenss griised In t tat t

The blended rate of corporation tax in the UK ts 23 5% (2012 25%)

2013 2012
Numbaer Number
1318 122
ar4 586
418 311
1,431 1020
2013 202
£ 000 £0c0
79,004 54,736
7310 5,272
4,831 2 Bu2
81153 FIDN
2013 2012
£'000 £000
1,378 1,628
9 54
1,470 1 IBB?
453 Gi8
75 18
534 838
Kumber Numbar
a a8
2013 2012
£'000 £'008
2,067 483
(169) 8
4,285 3,834
6,154 4,333
{and)y (499}
&5 47
38 {4}
{381) {448)
5773 3,887
2012 2012
£°000 £o0o
15,877 6,852
3,711 1,738
1,774 1.652
as9 642
{63) {196)
{217) 12
114 {8)
85 47
5773 A887

Following the enactment o! the Financa Acl 2012 the man rats ol comaoraion (ax has reduced kor the financlal year beginnng 1 Aprdl 2013 rom 24% to 23%. this was
enactad on 17 July 2012 The Finance Act 2013 was anactsd on 17 tuly 2013 which reduces the corporation tax rate to 215 from 1 April 2014 and 1o 20% rom 1 Aprl

2015 The Groups UK defarred tax balances have been recognised at 20%

Tha tax charpe lor the yaar ended 30 Seplamber 2013 was £5,773,000 (2012 £3,887.000) which was 36% of profit before tax (2012 56%)

Excludng the impact of acquistion costs and changes in the {ar value of delored consideration, the tax charga for the year ended 30 Seplember 2013 was £5,773,000

(2012 £2,807 000) which was 29% of profit balore tax (2012 38%)
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8 Eamings por share

Basic eamings per shara is calculated by dividing the profit aiaer tax lor the fmancial year attributabla to aguity helders of the parent by the weightad averags number of

orginary shares i lssue during the yaar

Dilutad samings per share Is calculated a3 lor the basic eamings per shara with a further adjustrmant & the waightad average number of ordinary shares (o reflect the efiacts
of all potential dilution gnd any increase in shara capital during the year The dilutec eamings per shara i nat presantad i the tinancial stataments becausa the impact of tha

ditution Is immaterizl The wmpact on the samings per shara Is 0 02p
The weghtad average number of ordinary shares includes shares held by the Employee Benefit Trus! {ses note 25)

2013 2012
Lor's 000's
Waeighted average number of shares used tn calkculation of baske eamings par share 50,740 44 326
ENec! of potgntial dituion - share ophons 30 301
Waelghted average numbar of shares used in calculation of diluted pamings per shara 51,041 44 627
Thg sammngs per share is darived from the figuras as {ollows
Continuing  Olacontinued
2013 oparations operations Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Profit attar tax 10 104 {230) 9,874
Minority intarest {2,804} : {2, B04)
Prafi1 sftar tax and minority inierests 2,300 230} 7,070
Change in lalr value of deferred consideration ansa - 3,008
Bafore chango n falr valus "FV* of daferred conalderation 10,398 1230} 10,168
Loss on dsposal of discontinued operations . 287 287
Betore FV adjustments cn deferred conolderation and profit on disposa! - basic 10,358 57 10,455
Non-recurring costs 3,069 3,069
Tax efiaci on non racuming costs {721} - 72%)
Bafore FV adjust, on de! d ideration and non-recumming costs 12,748 57 12,803
Acquisition costs 918 - 518
Bafore FV adj on def d canaideration and non-recurring coats and acquisition costs 13,664 57 13,721
Contmuing  Lisconinueg
2012 oparztions operations Tolal
£000 £000 £000
Prolit atter tax J D6S 17,507 20,572
Minerity Intarast £2.145) - [2,145)
Profil after tax and minarity intesasts 820 17,507 18,427
Change In falr value of defermed consideration 1,503 - 1,503
Bafora change in talr value “FV* ol dolarted considaration 2423 17.507 19,930
Profit on disposa) of discontinued operations . (17123) {17,123)
Imgairnent of non-linanclal assats - 1.1 1,196
Botlora FV adjusiments cn deferrad consweration and profit on disposal - basks 2,423 1,580 4,003
Non-recuming costs 3,280 - azeo
Tax aftect on non-recusnng costs [B20) . (820}
Belore FV ad|ustments on defemed consideration and non recumng costs 4,883 1,580 6 462
Acquisition costs 1,743 - 1,743
Belora FV adjustmants on daferrad consideration and non recurring ¢osts and acquisition costs 6,626 1,580 B 208
2013 2012
£000's £000's
From continuing operations
Eamings per share - basic 1300 14 4p 920 21p
Balore fair value "FV* ad|ustments on dalarrad considaraiion - basic 10,298 20.5p 2,423 5%
Balore FV adjustments on deferred consideration and non recurting costs 12,7146 5 1p 4,883 11 Cp
Belora FV adjustiments on deferred consideration and nan-recuming costs and acquisition costs 13,664 25 9p 6,626 15 0p
From discontinued operations
Eamings per share - basic (230) (0.5p) 17,507 95
Belora FV adjustmants on daferred consderation and prolit on disposal - basic 59 01p 1.580 J6p
From continuing and diacontinued opemtions
Eamings per share - basic 7070 139 18,427 41 6p
Before FV adjusiments on dslerred consideration - basic 10,168 20 op 19,4930 45 0p
Beafore FV adjustments on delferred canssderation, non recurning costs acquisition costs and profit on
disposal basc 13,721 26 9p 8,206 18 5p

The adjustment for non recurring casts nchudes a tax saving at the current rate of 23 5%

2 Dividends

The Group has paid intersn drvidends in the year of £1,991 000 (2012 £1 200,000} The Group has nol daclared any lurther dvigands during the year ended 30 September

2013 (2012 nif
10 Goodwill

Posiive Impairmsent
goodwill lonses Tolat
£'000 E£'000 £'000
Opening nat book valus as a1 1 October 2012 121098 (5.000) 116,098
Acquisitions (see Nota 34} 2.2 - 8,201
Dispoaals and impaimments {2.099) 1,962 (1an
Remeasurament of assets anag Uabitilas at acquisiion as72) - 572)
Reclassificatlons and ather adfustments (657) - (657}
Closing nat boak value as at 30 Septamber 2013 125971 038 122633
Opening nat book valus as at 1 October 2011 49,961 (3,808) 45,156
Acquisitions 7,153 . 71,153
Disposals and impaiments {16) {1 195) (1.211)
Closing nel book value as al 30 September 2012 121,090 (5,000) 118,090
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10 Goodwlll {continued)

For the purpose of annual impawmenl tesing gocdwl is allecated to the followng cash-genarating unds (*CGUS"), which ara tha units expecisd 1o banedit from me synarg &s

ol he busness combmations in which the goodwil anses

Broking Underwriting Total Bolng  Underwritng Total

2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012

£000 £ 000 £1000 £000 £000 £000
Unaad Kingcom 11,488 12,259 83,747 71,421 12,259 83,580
Europe 14,653 2.452 17,125 12,750 2462 15212
Austratasia - 2812 2612 . 2812 2,612
Americas 5,851 . 5,651 7,058 - 7,058
Midcia East 184 - 198 108 - 198
Far East 9,180 - 9,180 3,120 - 3,120
Oter 4220 . 4,220 4,220 - 4220

Goodwill al 30 Septamber 105,600 17333 123,933 5,765 17,333 116,008

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are datermninad from value In use calculations The primary driver for the calculationa i the va'ustion dleach CGU at the end ol g
three yaar lorecast, al which slaga arojected profitabidy ks considerad 1o equale o nommalized futura cash flows The vslustion is basad on a muitple of projectad revenug
ang profit discounted 10 nel preseni value These calculations use projections based on financial forecasts epproved by management coverng o Biree year panod Tha key

assumplcns for tha vzlue in use cakulations are hase regarding the drscount rates growth rates, and

huation multiples A

&1 gstmates discount rates using

cumani markel assessments of the trne value of money end the Group's cost of capital The growth rates withen the fnancialt I'ore;asu ara detsrminad based on
managemen s knowlodge of the busmess and axpectations for marke! development. Vahialion mutiples agpled rafiect managemeant § miamal model kor tha vatuation of

nsurance inlennadaries

11 intangible aasets

Opening nat baok vatua 1 Gctober 2072
Exchange difersnces

Additions

Acquisition of subsdiary {see note 34)

Amaoriisation

Closing net book valus as at 30 September 2013
Casts

Actumuiatod amortisalon

Closing net book value as at 20 September 2013

Opaning nat book valus 1 Oclober 2011
Exchange ditterences

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary

Amarntisation

Reclassifications

Closing net book value a3 al 3¢ September 2012
Casts

Accumulated arnorisation

Closing nat book value as at 30 Septembar 2012

12 Propenty, Plant and Equipment

Consl

At 1 October 2012
Additiona

Exchange difterences
Dispusals and impakrmants
At 30 Seplomber 2013

Accumulated dapraclation
At ¥ Ocicber 2012
Deproeciation for the year
Exchange diferances
Disposats and imparmsents
At 30 Septembar 2013

Al 30 Septomber 2013
At 1 Ociober 2012

Patents and Customar
sofiwars  relaticnghipa O1her Total
£000 £°000 £'000 £'000
1,798 21,281 2,31 25,450
14 . 14
ac 93 15 188
- 3.836 416 4,252
{44} (2,824) {133) (3,008}
1,034 22 400 2,684 26,898
2,350 26,154 3,192 21,694
{516) (3,754 {525) {4,736}
1834 22 400 2,664 26,838
1,454 2 206 660 4,260
(19} - (19)
366 19,724 2,083 22,173
288 - - 288
(234) {649 {312) {1,195)
(55} - {55)
1798 21 201 2,371 25 450
2270 221 2,759 27,240
(472) {930) {388} {1 790)
1,798 21,281 231 25,450
Fixtures,
Lonsehold Motor ftings and
Improvementa vehicies equipment Total
£000 £'000 £°000 £'000
5482 509 14,804 20,795
1,135 120 2,877 4,132
127) 9) 10 (26}
(a7 {97) (188) (333}
§.543 523 17,502 24,568
1342 27 9,888 11503
828 103 2.247 2978
(44) () (120} (170)
{39) {79) (176} (294)
1887 291 11,839 14,017
4,655 232 5.663 10,551
4 140 236 4 916 9,293

As a1 30 Septamber 2013 tha nel book valug of langihle (ned assats hekd under finance leasas was £1,502,500 (2012 £1,109,000)
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12 Property, Plant and Equipment {continuad)

Furturas
Loasshold Motar (ittmgs and
mprovements vehicles equipment Total
£000 L 000 000 £'000
Cost
Al 1 Octoter 2019 870 191 9,718 12,779
Additions 2,554 58 2,904 5516
Acquisition of subsidlary 1036 14 5325 6475
Exchange differences 37 181 579 1,057
Disposals and mpatments {1.285) 35) {3722) {5 042}
At 30 Seplember 2012 5482 509 14 804 20795
Accumulated depreclation
At 1 Oclober 2011 1869 =1 5,428 7 485
Dapreciation for tha yoar 355 Il 1,522 1,948
Acquisition of subsidary 209 64 4278 4,551
Exchange diffsrerces 167 55 763 98s
Disposals and impairments {1,358) {5) {2103) {3 466)
Al 30 Sepiamber 2012 1,342 273 9ess 11 503
Mot book valug a1 30 September 2012 4140 236 43918 8,292
13 investments held at cost
2013 2012
£'000 £000
investmant al begnnng of year 1073 775
Acquisilions during the year 549 298
Net investmaent 1,622 1.073

In Jaruary 2013, Howden inswance Brokers AB purchased 20 of Soassumnce Danmark A/S ("SO Assurance’), an msurance brokar locatad in Cenmark for £150,000
DUAL International Limited ecquired 19 9% of DUAL Asset Undenwritng Limitad, a UK-dased insurance company, n May 2013 for £250 000

Tha Group ganed sevaral investments as part of major acquisitions A 24% investmani ks hald in HY Manna RisksLmitad with a value of £85 300 et year end, purchased as
part of the FP Marine acquisition A3 pan of the acquisition of Windsor Limilad the Group acquined 8 37 5% interest n Chartarama BV &n undarwnting agency based in the

Ngtherands The value of iis investnen is £64,000
The Giroup continues to hold its ive stmants in Howdan Korea Limited (39 9%} and GRC Howden Rsasurans Brokerligi Anonim Sirketi ("GRC"} (9 85%), a brokerage basad

in Turksy
T™he Group dogs not have boart representation and is unable to axert any signiticant influence on the financial and operabng pokcies of these investmants

14 Investienta In assoclates

During the yaar Howden Broking Group Limrad ecquired 25% of Howden Patagonia Comredores de Seguros Socedad da Responsabilidad Limitada (*Patagonia®y a stan
up insusrance broker incomperated and based i Chile for £353,000

Howdan Broking Group Limited owns 25% of the equity shereholdng and also hold a saat on the board of the company, resuling in significant influence aver the fnanclal
and operating poicies of Patagonta

2012
£'000
Investment at cost 353
Profit irom associate -
Netinvestment in assoclata —32,
The Group has not included the results of Patagonia in thess actounts as s amounts are desmed immaterial
15 Trade and othar recsivables
2013 2012
£ 000 £000
Insurance recenvables 45970 25789
Other debtors 6,215 5,643
Prapayments 7,436 6,193
Corporation tax recoverabla 2,303 2324
61,924 39549
2013 2012
Non-cument £'000 £000
Other debtors (B3] 7]
139 B2
Total trade and other recaivables 82,063 40,011

The dirgctors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recewabies 2pproximates their iair value
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16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash al bank and in hand = sterding
Cash at bank and in hand -~ other cureancles
Bank overdrahs

Eldyciary
Cwn funds

2013 2012

£'000 £000

78,502 36,253
94,952 100,410
[586) {278)
172,888 138 385
2013 2012

£ go0 £000
154,853 113,488
18,238 22 897
172 888 136 385

The Group holds short-tarm deposits that sro made lor varying periads, dapanding on the cash mquirermants of the Group, These depo3ts sam interast at markat short tam

depes? rates Tho Group has unrasirictad access to these deposits which mest the definttion of cash and cash equivalents

Fduciary batances comprise clent and insurar menles and fees and commissions eamed but undrawn at tha batance shaeat data These ame held in Insurance trust fund

bank accounis kor tha banafit of chents and insurers

A portion of the Group 3 cash balance b5 not available for usa die 10 legal restrictions and controls At 30 Septemnber 2013 the Group s restricied cash balancs is £2 1 (2012

£1.2m)

17 Trado snd cther payables loss Lhan one ysar

Insurante payables

Trade and other payables
Deferrad consideration

Other tax and socia! security
Accruals and deferrad incoma

Tatal vade and cther payablas

Tha diractors Considar that the carrying amount of trado and other payables approxmates thalr lair valve

Corparatian Wax payable
18 Trade and others payables due after more than one yenr

Amounts laling due aftar more than ong year
Delerred consideration
Trade and cther payablas

18 Bormowings

Currant
Loans from sefatod partias

Bank borrawings
Finance leass katilitles

Non-cumrent

Bank bormowngs

Loans from related parties

Finance leass Labiies

Cthar loans - Mangrah Miviachim Insurance Limited

Bank borrowings

2013 2012
£'000 €000
{152.768) (106 888}
(5,752) {6,140}
{962) (3,183}
(2.485) (2092}
(17.884) (18 310}
(27,093) 129,705}
{179,861} (135 593)
202 2012
£'000 £000
{5,241} (4 124)
2013 2012

o O

(2,415) (3.150)
2013 2012
£'000 £000
{1,440} 1198)
(20,823) {2737}
(838) {443}
—(22,901) {3378}
2013 2012
£'000 000
{66,145 {63,718)
(20,501) {11.564)
(885) 615)
{1,182} (1.542)
(88,674) (77 439)

Tha bank borrowings includa the syndicated lacites with HSBC and Lioyds Banking Group of £70m, enterad into upon acquisitlon of the Wndsor group in 2012 The
lacifiies are spit into @ £30m Amodising Faclty (Fackty A} payable over tha coursa of the ive years, and a £40m Bulle1 Facility (Facility B) payable at the end of ths five year

tarm £3m of Faciity A was qepald dunng 2013

During the year tie Group also drew down on en acquisition taciity and a ravolving cradt faclity £6 1m has been drawn down on the acguision tacility for the year ended
30 Septamber 2013, out of & total avatabile faciity of L10m The revolving cred lacdity has a balance of £16 5m a1 year end The revolving cradit facility s classified as a

cumant kablity while tha acquisition faciily is a long) tamm Habibty

The laciiies bear inlarest which is caicidatad based on LIBOR plus margn The margm is deferenl for each facility and reducas as tha adjusted laverage reduces dor the

See note 40 for changes to bank borrowngs pccumng atter tha batance sheet date

Loans from reistsd pertios

Folowing tha changes in shareholding of the Company and the repurchase of the Group's share capial (sae Note 25), the sharsholdar kan notas from BP Marsh and 31
Group Fic of E4 1m ware fully repaid B P Marsh & Company Uimiad ["BF Marsh®) ncreased thelr lgan to the Groupt 1o £6m, which is repayable by October 2017 and bears
intsrast ol LIBOR + 5% (minimum 7 5% per annum) The loans from Murolo Investments S L and (nversionas Muroca 5 L continue to baar interest at LIBOA +6% (minmum

%) and are both repayabis during 2014 These loans ars secured by a debenture over the assets of the Company
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19 Borrowings (continued)

Loan notes from relaled parties

As pan of the FP Maring acquisition, loan noles tolating £6 6m were Issued dunng the year The A loan notas of 1,884,541 have a Inal redemption date of 5 Fabruary 2018
with an intergs! rata of 9% The 8 loan notes hold a conversion option to convert into A sharas of the Company Several shamshalders have exercised this oplion during 2013
to acquire 168,300 sharas, wiih the option period expang 5 June 2014 At year end tha B loan notes had a batanca of £1,649 598, baarng an intarest rate of 0 5% par
annum The C boan notes of £3,954,517 with an interast rate of 5% wil be settied In cash by 5 Fabruary 2018

A foan note o Hendricks & Co was issued in May 2013 of €5 5m, attracting an (nterest rate of EURIBOR +3 5% The loan nole has a final rademption date of 1 Oclober
2015

As part of the Windsor acquusilion In 2012, the Company issuetl Loan Notes of £5 125,000 Thess are redeamable shoukd Hypetion elthar be soid or In the avent ol an inttial
public citerng if neither of these events occur, the [nal rademption date is J October 2017 Throughoui the foan term, intarest Is payabie at a rale of 9% per annum

Qther loans - Menorah Miviachin insurance Limlited

The Group has a loan from Menorah Miviachim Insurance Limitad with 8 camang value of £1 2m at 30 September 2012 Tha lpan attracts both a fixed componant of interast
at 6 2%, and a variable componant of interast al CPI + 3 3%, payable in quartarly instaiments ovar five ysars Tha loan is securad by both a local Israell law securty as wall
as a floating chamge over the assets of the borrowng subsidiary company, Howtlen General and Mamne insurancs Brokers (2011) Limited Howden insuranca Brakers
(2002) Limited also provided a local Israel taw security over its ncome fow, end agreed not 10 pravids any securty in lavour of sny third parties [nagatve pledge) sxchidng
pledgas that would be given In the ordinary course cf busmess and there are certain restriction on distrbutions ol dvidends by the company

The camyng amounts and the fair vahse of b ings are as folk

Carrying amount Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012
Currant £'000 £ 000 £000 £'000
Loan trom related partes {1,440) 97 {1.440) (197)
Bank bomowings (20,023) {2,727) {20,823) (2.737)
Finance leasa labiltles _(aa4) __(e39) {444)
{22,301} [3 378) (22.901) {3 378)

Carrying amount Fair valua
2013 2012 2013 2012
Nan-current £'000 £000 £°a00 £000
Bank borowings {58,148) (83,718) (66,146) 163,718)
Loans and loan noles {om relatad partias {20.501) {11,564) {20,501) {11,564)
Fmance lease apies [B6S) (615) {865) {615)
Other loans - Manorah Matachim insumnce Limied {1,162) {1,842) {1,162) (1 542}
(B8,674) (77,439) (82,674) (77 439)

20 Liquldity put option

201] 2012
£ 000 £ 000
Liquidity put option {48,4839) {48 118)

On 3 July 2012, € 676,900 'A’ ordnary shares ol £0 01 each {"the Windsor consideration shargs”) were issuad to shareholdars ol Wndsor Limitad as part of the
consideration paid for the Windsor Group acquisition Under tha tarms of tha acquistian, the Company agreed thalil no IPO or sale of the company eccurs before 27
Septarmber 2017, the holders of the Windsor consideraticn shares will have tha right to convert thew shares inlo lozn noles which would bo epayable n 2022 This
constitutes a pul option for the holders of the shares ("the lqukity pul opton”)

The fiquidity put option has a cap on ha value of loan notas which can be issued of £50m The Group has recognisad the maxmurn redamption amount of £50m which hes
baen disgcounted to present value

Management does not balieve ha liquidity put eption will crystalisa In five yaars’ time, a3 it is expected thal thera wil bo other exit simtapias avallable to tha holders, In the
event of an IPO or sale of he Company balore Septamber 2017, the put oplion woulkd be canceliad and tha labily written back 10 equity aganst the bquidity pui option
resarve In the unlkaly avent that the put option s axercised loan notes wil be lssued to the hoiders of the put opton in axchangs for their 8 876,900 ‘A" ordmary shares The
shares oblaned by the Company thraugh this exchange would be cancabed, with a transier from share premium and share capital ta a capital redemption resarve The nat
impact of this transactien en tha incomae statement and on the stalement of inanclal pasition is anlicipated io be Eni

21 Provislons
ErOD
provisiors
£
At 1 Cctober 2012 &T7
Ansing lrom acquistions and disposals [2]
Additions 775

At 30 Septamber 2013 1,518

22 Finance Leasss
The Group holds a portion of ts property, ptant and equpmen! under nance leases The Group has apbons to purchase the equipment for @ nominal amount 81 the end of
the iease tarms Tha Group's obligations under finance leases are securad by the kssors tie to the lansed assets

Intera st rates underlyng &l obligations undar fnenca lsases are lixed ot respaciiva contract dates ranging from 2% o 7% per annum

Preannt valus of minimum ‘eass

Minimum loasa payments in

2013 2012 2013 2012

f'one £'000 £'000 gooo

Not later than ona year 578) {369) {514) {37
Latar than ona yaar and nol laisr than live years {1.053) {814) {950) {740)
Later than five years - - - -
(1.5 (1183) (1.504) (1,057}

Loss futlure (nence charges 123 326 - .

Presant valua of minimum lease repayments [1,504) (1,057 {1,504) {2,057}
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23 Categories of financial assets and Habillties
The camyng amounts presentad in tha stalement of fnancial posttion relats to tha lcllowing categories of asssts and Eabiktiss

Loans snd Falr values

30 September 2013 £000 £000
Trade end other raceivables 652,063 -
Cash and cash equivalents 18,235
Trade and other payables {29,508} .
Comaration tax fiabities (5,241} .
Shaort-tarm bamowings {22,901) .
Long-tarm bormovangs {a6,674) -
Derivative fmancal instruments

Ferward taengn turrancy contracts * - T2

Intarast rate Swaps - 244

Future paymenls o mingrty interests due b less then one yoar - (837)

Futurs paymenis (0 mingrity interests due n more than one year - {19,781)

Liquidity put oplion - (48 489)

* Forward foreign cumrancy contracts are designated and effective hedging instruments

Assats/ (habidies) that are maasured at fair valua are recognised on the statmment of fnanclal posilon and gans or lossas am recognised in profit and Joss The lai values

ol derivative knancial nsinsments ara detemmined by ralarencs to expactad fulurs payments

Loans ana
raceivables/ Fals valua
ather financlal through
liahidles profis or loss
30 Septembar 2012 £000 £000
Trada and other recevabies 40 011
GCash and cash aquivalents 22 897
Trade and othes payablos {32,855} -
Corporation tax Kabiles (4,123) -
Short tarm bormowings {3,378} .
Long term borrowings {77,43% -
Forward fofaign cumancy tontracis - .
Farward foteign currency contracts - -3 [:]
Intarasi rate swaps . (373)
Futura payments to minonty interesis due in kess than one year . {3,209)
Futura paymants o minority iterasts dua in more than ona yoar - 10,057)
Liquidiy pul oplion - {48,118)

23b Derivativa financial instrumants

The Group uses lorwdrd gxchange contracts (9 reduce the nsk assockated with sales denomnatad in foseign currencies for Mowden insurance Brokers Limited and Dual
intamational Undarwmting Lmiied At 30 Saptember 2013 there wene cutstanding contracts with a fair vahsa of £722 000 (2012 £818 000) n avour of tha Group lor the

purchasa of loraign currencies n the nomal course of busness

Tha Groyp also has interest rate swap transactions 1o hetdge the nsk associated with the vailable interast payable on i3 long term bank borrowngs At 30 Saptember 2013
thate werg qutstandng contracts with a falr value of £244,000 (2012 £373,000) in favour of the Group (i favour of the HSBC and Lioyds Banlng Graup in the priar year},

&ll of which arg 10 recelve floatng/pay fixed interest rate swaps

Tne far vatue of ha above contracts 1 cakcutated usmy the mark 10 market rales prevaiing at the end of the financial year Further detail ncuding sensivity analysis on the

fair value of outstanding contracts ls contalned batow

The carmying amounts for the Group's derivative financial instruments may be further analysad as follows

2013 2012
Fair value of current and non-current derivative assets/{liabilties) £'000 £'000
Forglgn exchanga forward conlracts © 122 816
iniarerst rate swaps® 244 3Ty
Futura paymants ta minonty sharehoidars 20,418] 13,260
Net fair value of derivatives {19,452) (12 817)

" These contracts ane designated and are effective hedging instruments

3
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23c. Financial fiabitity on payments to minority intersals

The lair vatue of the Group’s financlal labiiity on payments to minartty interests at the year end was £21 380,000 (2012 £13 260,000)
The lulure commitments include the sam-out due on racent acquisitions and the tuture bability en put and call ophons The option Satitty ts caried at fair vatua and revalued

|ach year with movemenis going through the income statement The Babiities as at 30 Seplomber are as ollaws

Hendrichs & Co GmbH DAO surance Agancy Eam out

Hendricks & Co GmbH DA0 nsuranca Agancy Put and Call option
Howden Brasil Adgministracdc 8 Cormetagem De Seguros Ltda Eam out
Howden Brasit Administragio e Cormatagern De Seguros Lida Pyl and Call option
HBG Asia Holdings Limited and controbad entities Put and Cal option
FP Group Limited and controted antitles Eam out

FP Groug Limitec Put and Call aption

Northedge Forsikringsmagiing A 5 Eam out

Howden Empicyae Benelits Limited Eam out

Howden Insurange Brokers AB Put and Call option

Howcen [baria S A. Put and Ca¥ option

Total

Non- derivative portion ctassiied as trada and other payatles

Total darivative Habilities on payments to minority intercots

23d Financial insiryments hald at fair value

The disclosura of fair value maasuremants by lavel is assessad usmg the followng lakr value measurement hieranchy
= quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets lor identica! assets or l@biltas {Level 1),

* inputs othar than quotlad prices includad within Level 1 that are observabie for tha assat or labiity {Level 2}, and

» inputs for the assel or ablity that are not basad on ocbiservable market data {Level 3)

30 Septomber 2013

Derivatve financial nstrurnents
Forward foreign currency contracts
Intaresi rate Swaps
Future paymants to mmorty interesis
Liquidty put cption

30 September 2012

Dertvativa financial instruments
Ferward loraign cumency condracts
Inlerast rate swaps
Future payments o minonty Intarests
Liquidity put option

23e Roconcliiation ol movements in Lavel 3 financial instrumanis

Balance at 1 October 2012

Gains ard lossas recegnised in incoma Staternent
Rectassifications

Acqulsitions

Adjustments to initial racognition

Satled during the year

Briance at 30 September 2013

Balancs at 1 Dclober 2011

Gaing and lossas recognisad in Income Statement
Acquisitions

Sattled dunng the yaar

Balance at 30 September 2012

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
3,756 7.580
3423 2
1,208 1,288
827 1,024
1,325 1,147
550 -
3,926 -
2,173 -
2,432 B
a2 -
1,600 -
71,380 13.260
{862} -
20,418 13,260
Level Lovel 2 Loveld
£'000 £'000 E'000
. 722 -
- 244 -
- . {21,380)
- - (48,489)
- 966 {69,869}
Level Laval 2 Levetd
€000 £000 £000
816 -
A7y .
- (13,260}
- - {48,118)
443 (61 378)
Financin!
Habitities on
payments {o
minority Liguidity put
interests optien
£'000 £'a00 £'000
(13,260} {48,118) {61.378)
(2,727} 371) {3 098)
3,81 . 367
(13,382} (13 362)
2,182 2.182
11 - 2,1t
{21.380) {48 489) 189.868)
Financial
liabties on
paymants io
minority Liquidity put
interasts option
£'000 g £'000
311,373 - {11373)
{1.502) - {1,502)
{3,459} {48,118) $157)
3,074 . 3,074
(13.260} {46.119) {61,378)




Hyperion Insurance Group Limited

24 Doferred taxation

Deceterated capital allowances
Losses carred lorward

Othar short-term timing differances
Nat daferred tax balance

Defarred tax asset

Amount recoverabla within ons yaar

Balance at begnning of yaar

Detarrad tax (dabidlcrads n profit and loss gcoount
Reclassihcaton and other adusiments

Exchange dfferentes

Belance at end of year

Oetarred tax lishility
Balance 8 beginmng of year

Delerred tax cradit{teblt) m proft and loss account
Acquisition of subs«iary

Exchange diferencas

Balance al end of yesr

Net deforred 1ax liability at end of year

Total detarred inx cradit in profit and loss account for paried (note 7)

Tha recoverabiity of tax losses is dependent on thers being sufficient lutute taxable profits, Curmant forecasls suppon the parial recoverabilty of these losses i the

2013 2012
£ 000 £000
480 445
18 103
{4.543) {4,621}
{3.945) (3,073)
2,188 1.345
(367) 840
680 .
{96) :
2402 2185
(6,258} 14086}
749 {ags)
{830) (5.,457)
52 -
16,347) (6 258)
3.845) 4 073)
3m 446

foreseeable lutum Accordingly no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of losses not expectad to be recovered in the foreseeabla future

Factora that may sifect futurs tax charges

The Group has capitat losses of £761 000 (2012 £84,000) avaliable 1o cary lorward for offset against (uture capital gains The Group has unecognised non-trade losses of

£1,994 000 (2012 £3 §31,00C} for pifsel against futura income, subject to cerlan restrictions
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25 Share capital
Allotted and called up
2013 Number
‘000 £'000

Classilied as aquity
A ordinary shares of £0 01 aach Ira4 74
A ordinary shares of €0 01 each * 6,877 69
B ordinary shares of £E0 01 sach 3395 34
C ordinary shams of £0 01 each 2,318 23

$0 005 500
Adjustmant for employae banafit trusts
A ordinary shares of £0 01 each (358) (6]
B ordmnary sharas o £0 01 gach {195) {2)
C ordinary shares of £0 01 aach {53) {1)

49,401 494

Aliattad and cafled up
2012 Number
[a3:4] £ 000

Clasgifiad as equity
A ordnary shams of £0 01 each 39,051 391
A orclinary shares of £0 01 each * §,877 ;1]
B ordinary shams of £0 01 each 3,395 3
C ordwnary shares of £0 01 each 1,478 15

508014 509
Adjustmant for smployae bonalt trusts
A ardinary shares of £0 01 each {114} (1}
B ordinary shares of £0 01 each 13 .

50 684 508

= With option o convert into loan notes

The A ordinary, B ardinary and C ordinary shares of £0 01 each rank pari passu In all raspsacis exgept that on the sale or liquidation cf the Company the proceads shatl he
divided between tha sharsholders as follows
= firstly, the holders of the A ordinary shares will recaive the first £2 6004 per share

+ sacondly, the holders of the A ordinary shares and the B orainary shares will each receiva ths sutn of £0 42596 persharg [€303 - £2 6004),

+ thirdly, the balanca between £3 03 and £3 60 shall ba distributed betwean the holders of the A ordnary B crdmary and G ondinary first ssus {C1) shares aqually as though
thay wera ong class of shame, and

* jourthly, tha balance betwaen £3 6¢ &nd £4 41 shall be disinbuted between the holders ol the A ordnary B ordinary, C ordmary first issue (C1) and G ordnary second
Issue (C2) shares equally as though thay were one class of share and

= lastly the balanca over and abave £4 41 shali be distribuled between the hokders of the A ordnary. B ordnary. C ordinary fiest issua {C1) C ordinary second issue (C2) and
C ordinary third issue (C2) shares aqually as though they wera one class of share

Buring the year, 286,000 "A’ ordmary sharas of £0 01 gach were issuad 1o shareholders of Northadge Forsiknngsmeghing A S as part of the consideration pakl for tha
acquisition of the company As part of the censideration payable for tha acquistion ol FP Group Limitad, loan notes ware issuad which gava the purchaser an opbon to
canvert to A ordinary shares of the Company dunng the year The loan nole holders chase 1o exercisa this option which rasutied In tha Company Issuing 168 300 A orgmary
sharas 10 the sharshoiders of FP Group Limied

The Company alse issued new shares durning the year in refation ic emplayae share incantive arangaments far the Howden North Amarican Property & Casuatty Limitad
(NAPAC") and Howden Property Insurance Servicas Limited ("HPIS”) broking tesms, as part of tha consideration peyable folowng the exarcise by Howden Broking Group
Limitad of call aptions on sharas represanting the minority Inlerests in NAPSC and HPIS A tolal of 184,900 A ordnary shares ware issuad as part of the NAPAC transaction
and a total ol 60,200 A ordinary shares were issued as part of tha HPIS transaction A similar axescisa was perfomed in the ysar ended 30 September 2012 in retation 1o
both NAP&C and HPIS whareby 100 100 A ordinary shares werg issuad as pan of the NAPAC transaction and 96,900 A ordnary shares wers Issued as part of the HFIS
transaction

On 3 Juty 2012, 6,876,900 ‘A’ ordinary shares (with option to convert into loan notes) at £0 01 each ware tssuad fo shareholders of Windsor Limited as part of the
considaration paid for the Windsor Group acquistbon Ses note 20 for further details on the conversion optrons

In Seplembar 2008 e Group establshed Ma Hypserion Ihsurance Group Employee Beneit Trust 2008 (Hyparicn EBT) to hokd shares o be used to mest future Eab:ities
relating fo the Group’s share based compansation plans Under IFRS the EBT Is conskigred to be undsr de facio confrol of the Group, and has therelora baen consabdatad
inte the Group  As at 30 Seplambar 2013, tha Hyperion EBT held 322 350 (2012 68 650) A ordinary shares of £001 195,400 (2012 25 200) B ordnary shares af £0 01
and 52 900 {2012 nil C ordnary shares of £0 01 in tha Company

Upon acquisihon of the Windsor group of companies the Group alse obtained control of the Windsor Employes Benelit Trust {f'Windsar EBT), which has a simitar tunction
to that of tha Hyparion EBT A3 a1 30 Septembar 2013, tha Windsar EBT held 33,800 (2012 45,300} A ordinary shares of £001 In the Company
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25 Share caplial {continued)
Change in major shareholders and repurchass of share capital

On 8 July 2013, General Atlantic Hawtham B V purchasad shares ropmsentng in total 28 85% of the share capal of tho Company, n 8 iransaction invoiving the sale of
sharos held by two of the Company's major shareholders 31 Group pe {*317)} and BP Marsh & Company Limited ("BP Marsh®) Prior to the transaction 3/ and BP Marsh hekd
22 42% and 13 61% respecively in the share capital of the Company 31 sold 100% ant BP Marsh sold 80% af thelr respective sharehoktngs in tha Compary in the
transaction

At the same tma, tha Cempany repurchased part of 48 own sharo capital through the repurchase of a total of 2,856,800 A oranary sharas fron 3t Group a1 £5 20 per share,
gving an overad valua of €14,855,360 Of this tatal 1,923,000 A shares vatuad al £9,993,600 were financed Irom the Group's disinbutable reserves while the rernainng A
933 800 shares, valued al £4 855,760, wers financed from a frash share issue Stamp duly costs wera ncumad at O 5% of the purthase priceof tha sharas which were
expansed through the Ncome statemant.

The 1,923,000 A shares ropurchased from the Group's distibutable mserves were eligibie for treatment as treasury shares Tha Group elecled to cancel thasa shares The
par value of these shares was £0 01 per share, which resulied in a reduction of £18,230 (o the Group’s shara capital The shares reacquiredas a resuft of the hesh share
Issue ware not akigisie for treatment as a easury shares and wera also canceled by the Group The net eflect to the Group s share capital irom this tansaction was nll As
all shares repurchased wers canceled, the Group did not hold any traasury shares a1 year end, apart from those held by the EBTs

Sharo-based compensatlon plans

Dunng the yaar 841 200 C3 ordinary sharas wers issued lor share based inconive schemes Tha tolal cost racognisad by the Group was £n{2012 £nil)

The Company contnues [0 operale an exsculive sham option s5chema jor sracutive ditactors and ather sanior amployges undar which the gplions ongmally granted over
Ordinary shares ol €1 each In the Company prior 1o the raorganisation of the Company’s share capital on 3t March 2008 wera convaried inth options over A ordnary shares
af £0 01 esch in the Company This schame Is no knger an HMRC appraved scheme, having lost its HMAG approval status on the raorganisation of the Company's share
capitatin 2008 The price at which cplicns wese graniad under the schema was hased upon the estmated markat value of the sharos al the date of grant of the oplicns in
each case Options ware grantad on the basis hat thay would be axercisable between 3 years and 10 years atter the date of grant, foliowng which they wouid lapse

Ouring ths ysar snded 30 Saptomber 2012, howevar, the Remunaration Cammittee sgresd on bahalf ol the Company o extend the final expy date of cartain cpticns which
would otherwise have lapsed 1o 6 Dacermnber 2014 The charge for the year n respect of these options amounted to £nit for the year endad 30 Septembar 2013

All sharg scheme ncentvas are at the absolute discration of the Remunaration Committaa, with no emplayee having the right to recaive sucha gramy  Tha fair values ol
share-based ncentives are dalgrmined al tholr date of grant.

Cutstanding share cplicns

AL 30 Septembaer 2012 Tiecs were 300 600 unaxarcaad options In respect of e Company’s A ordnasy sharas o1 £0 01 ench, which wam ksued 1o vasious executves in the
Group During the year there was no mevemenl in the number of sham options tssued

An analysis ¢l the axercise prics and the datss the sharg options may bo exorcsed is set oul below

Exarsisable Heid at end of

Data of grant Exorcise price from Expiry dala year

£ Numbar

5 Daecember 2001 oz 06/12/2004 0B/ 4 16,200
10 Fabruary 2003 028 11/02/2006 0a12/2014° 25,000
14 June 2004 046 1506/2007 06122014 47,500
14 Decembar 2005 147 181272008 151272015 25,000
153 July 2005 150 2007/2009 200772016 75,000
08 December 2006 180 D9/12/2009 091272016 15,000
22 Ociober 2007 1.52 22102010 27102017 g 900
21 November 2007 152 2212010 22hnaoT £6.800
300,600

* The final exercize cates of these options have baen extandead by the Company 10 6 December 2014 n each case
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26 Other resarves

Capitat Anast Share Cash flow

redemption revaluaticn options Transiation hedging Minority oplion Total other

rossrve rasernm teserve EBT reserva ressrva resarve ressrve reserves

2013 £'000's £'000'a £'000°s £ 000's £000's £000 s £000s £000 8
Ag at 1 October 2012 . - 882 a07 {62) [T 120 (5.069)
Net loreign exchange adjustments - - 40 - [1050) . - {1.010}
Repurchase of share capital 19 A i A ) N . 19

Nat movament in shares held by Employoe
Benefit Trust - . a32 - . 832
Movemant in cash flow hedge - - 822 - 522
Arising on acquisition and disposals - - {12 110) {12 110)
Revaluaton of assats - 39 - - _ —d?
Ag at 30 September 2013 19 39 802 1,629 {1112} BE6 (19,'2‘301 {16.777)
Share

options Transiation Cashilow  Minorty option Total other

rserva EBT Reserv reservg hadpng reserve resarve rasarves

2012 £000s £000's £000's £ 000' £000's F'000s

Dwioends paka - - - . - -

Net movemaent in shares held by Employes . , B . .
Movement in cash fiow hedge . - 444 N 444
Arising on acquisibon and disposals - 227 - - 3,04 2818

As al 30 Seplember 2012 B62 BO7 621 434 7 120) _!3"_1'1 0e5)

The resasve for mnority options includas the inllial fair value of put cption Rabidies granted to minorily sharehodars and future commitmentis or polentlal obbgatons 1o
acquire shares in subsidiaries cumantly hakd by non-coniroling shareheldars Subsequent changes in the fair value ol the put opbon liability are recognised in the incame

The movement n tha minoity option rasarva reprasents the future commitments (o purch minonty i Tha movement relates o the acquisition of the following
2013 2012
£ 000 £'000

Hawden Brasit Adminisiragdo e Carrslagem De Seguros Lida (128) 1,025

Howdan Employea Bensfils Limbed 2432 -

Northedge Forsikringsmeging A S 2087 -

FP Group Lomnited 3,735 -

Howden tbaria SA 1,52%

Howdan Insurance Brokers A B 83

Purchase of shares ol non-controllng shareholdars 2,386 2.0 1g
12 110 3 04,

27 Cash flow adjustments

Tha cash flows for the Group ore prasenied for continuing operations cnly They exciude the cash fows rom discontinued cperations and cash flows

Cash acquired on acquisition of subsidiarius is separately shown nstaad withn nat cash outflow from acquisiions snd disposa’s surance cash acquirod on acguisition of
subsidianes Is shcwn saparately within insurance cash generaled from oparating activilias Management considers hal this approach provides g tlearar view of the
undardying cash flow movements

Cash flows for discontinued oparalions are separalely praseniad in nots 39

28 Financial risk management

Crodit risk

The Group s panepal Gnancial assets are bank balances and cash trade and other receivables The amounts prasentad in Me statement of tnancial postion ara net of
allowancas for doubtful recelvables An allowance for impaimment is made where thare is an identilied loas eveni which, basad on provious experience Is evidance of a
reduction in the racoverability of cash flows

The Group has no significant concantration of cratt risk, with exposure spread over a largs number ol countarparies snd customers

The credn risk on bquid funds end derivatve financial instrumants s limited as the countarpartes am the Group's benkers with high creda miings assignad by niemational
credit rating agencias
Agsing informalion af insurence receivablas are a3 set out below

Nod More then
pait dus 0=3 menthe 3 months Total
At 30 Septamber 2013 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Insurance receivabias 18,845 20,169 9,156 45,970
Not More than Total
pas! dua 0-3 months 3 morths
At 30 September 2012 £000 £000 £'000 £000

mnsurance receivabies 14042 7,140 4607 25,789
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28 Financial risk management {cantinyed)

Liquidiy riok

In grdar to maintain dquidity to ensyra hat suificlent funds are avalable for on-going oporations and kaiure developments, the Group uSes 8 mxturg of lng B and shor
tarm dabt linance Thae lofowng table details the Group's remalning contractual matunity fos its non-gerivative financial dablities with agroed repayment perfods The table
ncluces the princpel cash fows only Tha contractual matunty i based on the earbest date on which the Group may be required lo pay

30 Saptember 2013 Less than 1-5 5+ Tatnl
1 year years yoars

[yvi] caco £'000 £'000

Finance lease Sablity (638) {865) - {1,503)

Othar ans - Menorah Miviachim Insurance Limitad - 1,162) - {1,162)

Bank borowngs (20,823) (88,148) - (86,968)

Other third party loans {1,440} {20,501) - {21,041)

(22,901} {83,674) - {111,575)

30 Septamber 2012 Less han 1-5 5¢ Total
1 year yoars yoars

£000 € 000 £000 £ 000

France lease labiity (444) (615 - (1 059)

Other loans - Manorah Miviachum insurance Limited - 1.542) - (1.542)

Bank bomowings 2,737} {65,260 - 67.967)

Othar third panty loans {188} {11,564 - 11,762)

{3.379) (78.981 - 82,360)

The fallowng table detais the Group s iquidity analysis fur its dervalive financial nstruments The table has been drawn up based on discouwtied net cash lows on derivatve
Instruments Where the amoun! payabile or receivable is not lixed, the smount disclosed is the falr value of the instrument at the balance shest date

30 September 2013 Less than 15 5+ Totai
1 yaar years years
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Foreign sxchange lorward contracts 956 - - 966
Interast mite Swaps 244 - - 244
Future payments to minocity sharerokders {837) {19,781} - 20,418}
573 (19, 781) < 119,208}

Interost rate risk

The Group's only axposura s an tha intarest payable on tha Company’s varable rale bommowings and njerest recaivabla on banking deposds held n the ordmnary course of
businass Cvardrahs and bank bomowings bear g fioaling nteres! rale s a resut, the Group ks subject to a certzin degree of cash flow nterest rate risk due to Ructuationa in
the pravaling lavals o markat interest ratas The Group fs nol subjact to interes! rale risk in relation to the fxed rats bomMwngs

Ouring the previous year tha Group entared into intarast rate swap ransactions to exchanga variable and fixed intarast paymeni obligations 1o protact 1ong-tarm borowings
from the risk of Increasmp intarast rates The Group uses swap contracls to mamtain a dasignatad proportion of fued to floatng debt

A1 30 September 201] thera were outsianding contracts with 8 principal value of £243 000 (2012 £373,000) in favour of the Greup (in favour of the HSBC and Lioyds
Banking Group In the prior year), all of which are to receive loaling/pay fixed intarasi rate swaps These arrangamants hedgs 80% ol Facily A lar thras years eflectve 31
Dacamber 2012, and 100% of FacBty B for fve yeary, eifective 31 Decembar 2012, The net ntarest payments of recalpt settioments of the twap contracis occur sems
annuatly The net setlamant amounts are brought nto account as sn adjustmant to nterest expense

The net effectve variablo intarast rte boowngs (e unhadged debi} oxpose the Group to interast rata rsk which will mpact future cash fows and nteros! charges

The axposurs for he Group, at 30 Saptambar 2012, of financla! asssis and financial labdities to interest rata risk is shown by reisrence to

- fioaling interest rates (e giving cash flow interast rate dsk) when the intarast rate is due to be e set and

~lixgd interast rates (ie giving fair value interest rate risk) when the fmancial instrument 's dug for repayment

Fized Fioating

rats rate Total
Al 30 Septambar 2013 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financia) essols
Cash and cash equivalents 18801 18,801
Insurance cash . 154,653 154,683
Total financial ansets - 173,454 173,454
Financial Habilities
Bank overdrafht - {5656) (586)
Bank borrowngs - (81,569) (81,569}
Loans and lban notes from ro'ated parties . {21,941) {21,941)
Finance leases {1,509} - {1,503)
Unhedged bank borowngs - {5.400) (5,400)
Darivative financial Rabkties {373} - {373}
Total financial lishilities {1,876} {109 478) {111,352)

Fed Floating

raie rats Totat
AL 30 September 2012 £000 £000 £000
Financlal assats
C-ash and cash aquivalents 23175 23,175
nsuranco cash 113,488 113,488
Financlal Gabdltias
Bank gverdraft 278) (278)
Bank bofrowsnas (61 897 (81 887)
Loans and loan notas from relatad parties {11,762) (11,762)
Finance leases (1,059) - {1,059}
Unhadpad bank borrowings (8,000) {6,000)
Denvatve financal kabilties {373) I (372)
Tota! financial Bbites {1,432 {80.037) (81,469)

France costs are i rates documeantad in nota 19

~ Interest pald 6n borrawings uhdar the multi-cumency revoving crad:t fackty is at a margn over LIBOR or its foreign curmency aquivalent (2012 No change)

- Intarest mcaived on cash 2nd cash equivalents is managed to achiove @ margin over LIBOR or éts foreign cumency equivaiant (2012 nochange),

A3 cash and cash equivalents are investad at short lerm market rates, ‘or fixed short-term periods and hakd to maturity, they are not significantty impacted by movements in
intarest rates
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28 Financlal risk management (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Canaln of the Group s assets, fiabilities, income and expenses are danominated in curanciss cthar than Siermng The currencias giving risa to this risk are pamardy US
Dolar Euro and Australian Dollar Forelgn exchange risk arises when rocognised assatd and labiltiss are denomnated in a cutrancy thai ks not the entity's lunctional
cumency As a result, movaments in axchange rates may affact the Sterling value of those ltems

The far values of the Group s nat assals, revenue and expansas thal have US Doflar, Euro and Austraitan Dollarjoraign curmency expasura are as follows

usos Eurg AUD
Al 20 September 2013 L'000 £000 £'000
Nat assals 18,247 5382 5,375
Revanue 43,263 18,073 15,852
Expensas {5,600) 8,775) (7.794)

usos Euro AUD
Al 20 Septamber 2012 £000 £000 £000
Nat assots 28,772 11,595 674
Ravenus 18,236 24,055 10,776
Expensas {5.443) {8,135) {7.015)

The Group s policy is to redyce thg nsk associalad wdh sates denommnalad in loreign curencies by using forward cwrancy sales contracts taking into account any forecast
foreign currency cash flows

Fomign curmency sensitivity
The lallowing table details the sensitwity of the Group's aquity 1o a 10 increase and dacroasa in Sterling against US Dalar, Euso and Austrakan Dollar

usops Euro AUD
At 30 September 2013 £'000 £'000 £7000
Nol assots 1,825 [ED) 527
Ravenus 4,326 1,997 1595
Expenses (560) (aze;} )

usp s Eurc AUD
At 30 Septembar 2012 £ 000 £000 £000
Net assats 2,877 1,160 &7
Rovenus 1,834 2,406 1,073
Expenses (544) 813 {702}

29 Cantingant fiabilities
Al 30 Seplembar 2013 the Group had centngant Labiltes in respect of guarantess and mdamnities enterad into &3 part of the ordnary cousse of tha Group’s business No
material losses are Lkaly to acise from such contingent kabsdities and tharafore no provision has been recordad

The Group is involved from time to time in tha ondinary course of is business in certain clars and legal proceedngs related to tha Group's operations, induding employmaent
relatad matters In the opinion of rnanagement, iabilities, if any, ardsmp from these claims and proceedings will nothaver a matedal adversa elect on the Group's
consolkiated financial position or tha rasults of s operations

The Group analyses s bigation exposure based on avaab'e information, inchuding extemal iegal consuttation, where appropnate, 1o assess 4s polential fabiidy Askde from

30 Operating lease commibtments

A1 30 Saptarmber 2013 the Group had commitrmants under non-cancelable operating leasas as sat out below

Land and Buildings Other
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £ 000 £000
Not tater than ona year 2655 2765 258 292
Later than ane year and not later than fiva yoars 15980 7711 172 535
After live yoars 1104 2,693 — .
11,739 13 169 730 827
During 2012 the Group entered into a new g lase agr t upon the relocation of the head office to Eastheap Street in London The lease commenced on 31

January 2012 for a petiod af 11 years The agreement includes an incantive in the form of 2 30 month rant ftea padod Upon acquisttion of the Windsor Group in 2012, the
Group also acquired saveral oparating leases In ratation to vadous Windsor afficas including Fenchurch Streat inlondon This lease commenced on t June 2010 and has &
15 yaar term, with a rant frea pariod which ended on 30 November 2011

31 Defined contulbution pension achemes

The Group operates a number of definad ¢ tion p 1 8 The assats of tha schame are hald sapanslaly from those of the Group in an mdependently
administered fund The pensicn cost charge represents contributiona payatiia by the Group o the fund end amounted to £2 453,000 {2012 £2,802,000) Contnbutions
outstanding 4t the end of the yaar amournited to £325,000 (2012 £311,000)
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32 Defined benelit pension scheme

The Group operales a delined benefil pansion schame, the Windsor Ratirement Benefits Scheme No 2 The asssats of tha schama arg heldin a separate trustee
adminisiored fund independeni of the Company’s finances

Aciariat galns and losses are sacognisad in full in the period in which they ocour  As penmitied by I1AS 19, actuanial gains and lnsses are moognised outside profd or kiss 8a
other comprshensive income  The emount recognised In the statement of financial position represents e falr valua of the schema assels mduced by the prasent vatus of
tha dalined benelit abigabion

An sctunrial vaiugtion was pariormad as at 30 September 2013 by &n ndependeni qualfied actuary In accordancs with IAS19  As requlred by IAS19 the value of tha
defined beneld ocbigation has been measured usng he projected uni credd method and both the essats and Eabiites ncluds tha value of these pensions in payment whch
am socured with insured ennuities

The expeciad 1ats of retum on assals loc he year ended 30 Seplember 2013 was 4 3% pa (2012 4 7% pa) Ths rate is denved by taking the weightad averaga of the kong-
tarm expacted rate of retum on each of the asssl classas thal the scheme was ir  m a1 30 September 2013

Mo contrbutions have been paxd by the Company In the period to 30 Saptember 2013 and nona are axpected in 2314 Thera arg ne longer eny actve mambers in the
scheme

The toflowng table sats cut the key IAS18 assumptons ysed lor 6 scheme

2013 202
Assumptions £°000 £ 000
Prica Inflation 33%pa 27%pa
Olscount rale 44% pa 4 3% pa
Penslon increasas in payment (LPY) 30%pa 30%pa

On the basis of the assumptions ussad for lfe expectancy, a make perscn age 65 at the accounting date wouk! be expacied to Sve o lurther 226 years (2012 225 years) A
malg person whe attains age 65 n 20 years tme Is expacied lo fve a lurther 24 5 years (2012 24 4 years)

The amount includad in the slatement of inanclal posiion arising lrom the Company's obkgations in respect of tha scheme is as folows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Falr value of scheme a3sels .67 2,697
Prasent value of scheme fabilties {2,850) (2,628)
Surplus 121 69
Amount nol recognised due to asse! imit {121) {69)
Balance shost nssot / (Eability) - -
The amounts racognised in profit and loss are as fobows

2013 2012

£'000 £'000
Empicyar's pan of cumrent servica cost (6) (4)
tntasest cost (110) {87)
Expecied retlum on scheme assets 114 g2
Total expense/{credit) includad in prafd and loss 2} 1
Tha current allocation of the scheme's assets Is as follows

2013 2012
Equliies 16% 14%
Bonds 1% 15%
Insured pensioner policiss/cther E7% %

100% 100%

None of the assals of the scheme are drectly invested in the Company's own financlal instruments or in any property occupled by tha Company

Changes i the prasen! value of tha dafined banefit cbigabon are as loflows
Yaarto 9 montha to
3J0M09/201) 300920112

£'000 £000
Opening dalined benafit cbiigation 2,828 2.532
Employer's pant of cumen! service cost [ 4
Intarost cost 110 87
Contributions from scheme mambers - .
Actuarial (gain) / loss (34) i
Benalis paid (140) {106)
Ciosing delnad baneld obligation 2,550 2,628

Chengas in the far value of the Schema assels are as loliows
Yenr to 9 montns to
30092013 300972012

£ 000 £000
Opaning falr vahue ol the Schems ossals 2,897 2,627
Expecied retum on Scheme assets 114 92
Actuaria) gain / (ass) - 84
Benefis paid ta Schema membars {140} 1106)
Closing lak value of Scheme assets 2671 2,697

The changas n the present value of tho deined banelit cbligations have been taken from the movement snce the pravious valustion
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32 Defined benellt achame (continuad)

The actual retumn on the Schemea s assets over the year ended 30 Septamber 2013 was a galn of £114,000 {nine months te 30 September 2012 a gain of £176,000}

The amount rcognised outsida profit and koss in other comprehansiva income Jor the year ended 30 Septembar 2013 is £ndl (nne months to 30 Seplember 2012 Eni

including the elfect ol the asset tmi

The cumulative amaunt recognised csulside prafit and loss at 30 September 2013, excluding tha effect of the assetkmit, iz a oss of £154 000 (2012 a loes of £208 000}

Falr value of schemea assels
Presani value of dakned benelit obbgatlon
Surplus / (deficit)

Exparience adjustmants on schems assels

Amoum of gain / (loss}

Percanlage df schame assets

Exparience adjustments gn Scheme labilties

Amouni of gain / (loss}

Parcentags of the present value ol the schama babiiies

33 Related party ransactions

Tha Group conskders parties io be related i one party has the abllty to control the other party or exercise significant infiuence over the other party in making fnanceai or
A3 at the balance sheel dalg, thae only amounis due (lo)/%rom related partes wam sharsholder loans and lean notas

The Group had the JoBowing transactions with related pasties dunng the year

IT and othar axpansas paid to Fami Pramwm Limiled
Fees paid o B P Marsh & Company Limiied

Intarest pald/payabla to B P Marsh & Company Limited
Intarast paid to Murofo Investmeanis SL

Intarast pald to Inversiones Muroca SL

Interest pald to 31 Group pic and associatad undertakngs
Intarest paid to Marsh Christan Trust

Fees pakd to 3 Group plc and assoclaled undanakings
Fees pald to other diractars

Interest paid on loan notes from Hendricks Gmbh sharehcitar
Interast paid on loan notes from FP Marine shareholdars
Intarest paid on loan notes

Amaounts recaivable and payable s the end ol the year

B P Marsh & Company Limited feas payable

3 Group ple and assoclaled underakings

L Mufoz Rojas diraciors fees payable

General Attlantc Hawthom B V faes payabla

Amounits dus from J P dg Blocy van Kultaer”

Amounts Included within other short-tarm debtors and creditors

Loan from B P Marsh & Company LimRed

Loan from Muroio Investments SL

Loan from Inversionas Muroca St

Amounts included in loans from relatac parties (nate 19)

Loan notes from 3i Group plc (inc rolled interest)

Loan noltes trom B P Marsh & Company Limhad

Loan notas from Marsh Christian Trust

Loan notes from Hendricks

Loan nolas from FP Maring shareholders

Loan notas

Amounts included in loan notes from related parties (nota 19)

2013 212 201 2010 2009
E'cog £000_ £000 £000 £ 000

2,671 1697 2627 2444 2,419

{2,559) |2 628) {2,532) (2,306} {2.208)

121 59 95 128 131
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£'000 £900 £000 £000 £000

- 84 191 k2 222
% 3% T% 1% 9%
74 «o) 61) .
I% 2% 2% 0% a%

2013 2012

£000 £'000

Major sharehclder until B July 2013 {55) (53)
Major shareholdar untl 8 July 2013 [33n) (245)
Major shareholder {18) (18)
Major shareholdar 8} ()]
Malor shargholder until 8 July 2013 (293} (356)

Major shareholder {104)
Major shargholder untl 8 July 2013 (40) (83}
Directora {143)

Non-controlling shareholdar ol subsidiary o7 .
Non-controling sharahoider of subsidiary €196) -
Shareholkders {461} (110}
1,754) (847}

Major shareholder untd 8 July 2013 - (1)
Majaor sharehcider unli 8 July 2013 - (53)
Director {64} -
Major shareholder from & July 20123 13} -
Chairman 74 3
{3} 56)

Mafor shareholder unid 8 July 2013 {8,037} {1837
Mator sharehokler {125) {250)
Major sharehokder (58) _(115)
(8,230) {2 302)

Malor sharsholdar unti 8 July 2013 - (2,723)
Major sharehalder undit 8 Juty 2013 - (957)
Major sharshokier {765) (718)
Non-controling sharehokier cf subsidiary 3,788) .
Non-controlithg sharehoider of subsidiary 7,552) -

Sharghgiders §5,125) 5.125
{17,188} 8523

During the year, 31 Group plc and associated undartakings ("3 sold 100% of their intenest n the Group, resulting n 2 shasehokdng of il at year end Ruoer 1o noia 25 for
further cetail, As par of this ransaction Ganerat Aflantic Hawthom 8 V' acquired a 28 B5% cwnarship of the Company's issuad shares, the largest sharehoking in the

Group

B P Marsh & Company Limited ("B P Marsh®), a wholly ownad subsidiary of B P Marsh & Partners pic , owned 2 B1% of the Company s issued shares at the end of the yaar

“The balance due [rom JP de Blocg van Kutfeler at 30 Septamber 2013 was repald in full on 4 November 2013
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34 Business combinations

Howden Brasll Administragio & Comretagem De Seguros Lida

On 2B September 2012, Hyparion acquired 51% of Howden Brasi Admmistragdo 8 Corratagem De Seguros Lida (‘Consat), a Braziian based independent setail and
wholasale broker that specialises in the construction industry, a kay growth sacior In the lamritory The acquisiion is In Ine wih the Group's sintegy to increase its
geographical prasenca, paricularly i the smemng market of Latin America

As tha acquisition occured on the final day of the pravicus financial yaar, the prrior year accounts duclosure dicd not inchude any subsequent camplaton adjustments made to
the fair valup of delerad consideralion and the recognised amounts of identiffable assats The restated amounis below reprasent the inal consideration pad and net assats
acyuired.

Since acquisition, Conset has contrbuted revenue of ©1,964,000 and an EBITDA of £68,000 to the Group

Purchase considacation £'000
Cagh pant 210
Fair valua of dalerred consideration 1,706

2518
Recognised amounts ol identilable assels acquied and Rabilies assumed
Property, plany and equipment 52
|dentiliabla intangibis assats 678
Trade and other raceivatias 53
Cash and cash equivalants 166
Trade and other payabies {57)
Incoma ax payable

1,365
Non-controling nterast (571)
Nel assets acquirad 554

Goodwill

1,922
———
Acquisition-related costs of £80,000 were incurred dunng the year An addiional £79,000 was included withan acquisition costs it the censolidated micome statement for the
yoar endad 30 Seplamber 2012
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductbie for ngome tax purposes

FP Group Limited and controlied entitiag

On 5 February 2013, the Group completed the acquisilion of 55% of FP Group Limited and controlled enties. {(*FP Marne®), through the newl incarperated company

Hyperion Marine Holdings Limliac. FP Marine Is 8 highly dynamic, fast growth business that has been successiul m carving out a significant niche position n the Astan
marine markal, with offices » Hong Kong Tawan China Austratta and London

The acquisition contrbutad revenue cl £6 Bm and an EBITDA of £84,000 fo the Group since its acquishion

£'o00
Furthase considaration
Cash pald 2,061
Falr value of lgan notes issued 8,005
Falr valua of delerred consideration 1,408
Pt and call option (fak value &1 acquisition) 221
Price adprstment machanism (2 332)
Total purchase conalderation 5,363
Ascognised amounts of identifable assats acquired and liabdbes assumed
Property, plant and squpment 1.087
tdentifiable intangibla assais 3050
invastmenl in associala 63
Tmda and othar receivables 1,210
Cash and cash equivalents 632
Financial Kapiitios (1,431)
Trads and ather payablas (921
Corporation taxation (67)
Detlerred taxation 38
Nei insurance balancas ' 3,602
Fabr votue adjustmenis to assats and labiblos aceouired . {12586)

6,005

Noni-contreting intarast (2.702)
Net assats acquired 3303
Goodwil II»:OSO

None of the goodwill recognisad ts axpectad to be deductibla lor income tax purposes
Acquisdion related costs of E753,000 were hcurted curing the year Thesa are included within acquisdion costs in the consclidated Income statement lor the yoar anded
30 September 2013

The Group has yet to finalise s measwament of the fal value of assats and labiklles acquired, the abovementioned numbers are provisional and witt be finatised withm tha
next reporing period

L1
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34 Business combinations (continued)

Northedge Forslkringsmegling AS
The Group acqulred 51% Northedge Forsikringsmeging AS ("Northedga®) on 24 September 2013, an insurance brokerago based in Norway The busineas operatas out of
QOsko and the (pam ara specialsts o Property and Casyalty, and Employes Benalls

As tho Group devalops its distribution across Europe, he establishment of a pan-Nordic broking platfonn from wich to sarve ciants regionally has always been a majer
oblactiva Nonhedge joins the Group s existng operations In Finland and Sweden Qiving mal credibilty lo this objscive

Purchasa considaration £'000
Cash paid 577
Share capitalissued 1443

2,020
Recognised amounis of identillable assets acquired and latilitles assumed

Property, plant and equipmant 3
identifiatle ntangible assets 45
Tmade and othel receivatbles 1?7
Cash and cash equivalenis a9
Trade and othar payables {72}
Corporation taxation (25)
107
Goodwill 1,913

HNona of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductble for mcome lax purposes

Acquisibon-1alated costs of £54,000 ware incurred dunng the year Thassa ard Included within acquisition casts in the consalidated ncome statement lor the year andad
A0 September 2013

The Group has yat to nalise s measurement of the lair value ol assels and Kabillties acqulied, the abavemantionad numbers ara provisional and will ba fnatsed whhn the
next raporng period

Howden Employee Benefits Limited

During the fnancial year endad 20 September 2013 the Hyperion Group thipugh ity subisidiary Howdan Broleng Group Limited, acquired 60% ol the shara capial in Hawden
Emplcyes Benalits Limitad, a Cardilf based insurance brokarage

Purchase consideration £'c00
Cash pax? 135
135
Racagnised amounts of idantfiable assets acquired and liabiktkes assumed
Propearty, ptamt and equipmeant g
Trade and other recelvables 13
Cash and cash pquivalents '
Trada and othsr payables {115)
(93
Goodwill _228

None of the goodwill recognissed is eapected ta be deductble for mcome lax purposes,

Acquisition related costs of £25,000 wease Incurred during tha year Thase are included within acqulsition cosls in he consohdalad incoma statameant lor the year ended 30
Saptember 201)

The Group has yol 1o finalise its measuremenl of the lak va've ol assels end lighities acquired the bovementioned numbars are provisiona! and will ba inaksed within {he
naxt reporimg pericd

35 Businoos combinations after the balance sheot dete
Subsaqueni to the batance shge! date the Group made the !cliowing material acqulsition

Primary Group, inc

On 25 Qctober 2013, tha Group acquired a majority mierast in Pnmary Group, Inc ("PGY), a leading Proparty and Casualty Program Manager haadquantered n Florida,
USA, mrough ha sutsidiary DUAL tntemational Limited PG controls premiums approaching USD $200m and s one of the rgest ndependent undarwitng agancies in e
United S:ales

PG stanted operations fust len years ago and has since enjoyed focusad growth and profilability basad on quabty underwriling in partnarship with majer US and intemationat
Insurers [t has underwritng officas in Catiformua Florida, Georgla Maryland, New Jersay and New York  The busness consists of spacialty programmes for both property
and casualty classas which am written on an admittad and axcess and surpius knes basis

The net assals of tha company era astimatad ta amount to apgroximately £4 2m, and the Group has paid £45 7mfor its 90% share in the Group The aforementicnad
amounts &re provisional and are subject to chanpge tollowng managemants review and mangitemant thareo!

Par-Ziv Ravid & Agency Limited

©On 4 November 2013, and subject io regulatory approval the Group acquired @ majorily Interest in Tel-Aviv based nsurance broker, Bas 2iv Ravid Insurance Agancy Limitad
{"Bar.Ziv") Established in 1976, Bar Ziv Ravid Insurance Agency Ltd providas a numbar of specialist insurance ssrvicas and products, inciuding its leading Professionat
The Group acqulred the sharshoking of Bar-Ziv lor £0 B5m and have yet 1o perterm a measurement of the net identiiable assets of the compeny
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36 Utimate controlling party

The group had no controling sharehckder at 30 Septemb

37 Capilal commitments

The Group has capital commitmants ln relaticn to the acquistion of minority shashaldngs, further information is In nota 23c The Group had ne other capital commiments

a3 at 30 Seplember 2013

38 Principal subsidiary and sasociated companies

The fobowng wore he princpal subsidiary and assoclals enlities al 30 Septernbar 2013 Unless otherwise shawn, the capilal of aach compeny is wholly-owned, is in.
ornary sharss and e pncpal country of aperation is the country ol incorporation

2013, or at 30 Seplember 2012

Nama of company % pwned  Mature of busnass
DUAL Ausiratia Ply Lknitad Australly 100 nsurance underwriing agency
FP Manne Risks Austrafia Pty Limited Australia &1 Insurance hroking
Howdan insurance Brokers (Bermuda) Limited Bamuda 100 tnsurancs brakng
n;-:mn Brasd Admmistraglo o Coretagem De Seguros Brazl 51 1 2 broking
Howden Corratora de Resseguros Lida Brax 100 Insyrance broking
FP Group Limited Bv) 51 intermedlats hoiding company
FP Intamational Holdmgs Limited- * Bv) 43 insurance brolng
Canadian Resources insurance Solutions Inc Canada 100 insurance broking
Asesorias 9 Inversiones Howden - Patagonia S A Chily 25 Insurance brokng
. 1]
::waen alano:\imwomsoe baguros bocedad Cnie 25 Insurance bros
Hawden Insunnce Brokers LLC** Oubal 35 insurance broking
Howden Insumnce Brokars Oy Fntana 93 Insurance broking
DUAL Deutschtand GmbdH Germany 90 Insurance undarwritng agency
Hendricks & Co GmbH D&O Insurance Agancy Gemany 75 Insuranca broking
Accatns Insuiance Managament Limitad® * Hong Kong 43 nsurance broking
DUAL Underwritng Agency (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 90 Insurance underwriting agency
Ff Maring Risks Linkad Hong Keng 51 insurance broking
FP Reinsurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong 51 Insurance broking
HBEG Asia Holdings Lmited Hong Kong 75 Intarmoediate holdng company
Howdan insurance Brokers {HK) Limiteq*** Heng Kong 43 Insurance broxing
Uriversal Healthcare Managemsenl Limited"™" Hong Kong 49 Insurancse broking
Howdan insurance Brokers indla Private Limted™** India 26 Insurance broking
PT Howden Insurance Brokers Indonasia Indonesia 80 Insurance broking
Lmenhnuad Genaera! and Marine insurance Brokars (2011 Istag) 100 Insurance broking
Howden Insurance Brokers (2002) Lented Israel 100 nsurance brakng
Howden Intamational Underwniters General insurance
Agency (2008) Limitsd Israel 100 Insurance broking
DUAL itaka Sp.A ltay g0 msurance undamwritng agency
Hyparion Devaelopmem Sarr Luxembeurg 00 Management services
Hyperion Finance S.ari Luxambeung 100 Manageman! services
HIG Risk Managemant Sarvices San Bhd Malaysia 75 Insurance broking
Howden Rlsk Management Consultants Sdn Bha Malaysia 75 insurance broking
Kinabalv Uttramar Agency Sdn Bhd Malaysia 75 Insurance broking
HBG (Mauritius) Limitad Mauntius 100 Intermadiate halding company
Howden (Maurius) Limited Mautns 100 Intermeadiate hokding company
Charterama B vV Netherands 38 Insuranca beoking
Howden nsurance Brokers Netherlanda B V | Nothertands 76 Insurance broking
DUAL New Zealand Limied New Zealand 75 Insurance undarwritng agency
Northedge Forsknngsmaging A S Norway 51 Insurance broking
Accetts LHe and Accident insurance Brokers Inc Fhippines ] Insurance hroking
Howden Insirance & Aensurance Brokars (Phil ), Inc Phippines 75 Insurance hroking
Unramar Astnsurance Brokers, tnc Prdippines 75 Insurance hroking
Dual Speclatty Underwriters inc Puerto Rico 100 Insurance underwritng agency
DUAL Undaerwritng Agency (Singapore) Pte Limbad Smgapcra 100 Insurance underwriting agency
HBG Holdings (Sihgapom) Pta Linuled Smpapom 75 Intormedate holding company
Howden Asila Pla Limited Snpapors 100 insurance broking
Howden Insurance Brokars (5 ) Pte Lmited Smpapote 75 Insyrance broking
DUAL Ibérk:a Rlesgos Profesionaias 5 A Spain 100 Insurance undarwritng ageancy
Howden lberla SA Spain BO Insuranca broking
Howden Insurance Brokars A8 Swaden o5 Insurance broking
Howden Insurance Brokers (Thakand) Lented Thakand a7 Insuranca brokng
Threa Wisge Boys Lig** Thaiand 37 Intermediate hokiing company
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38 Principal subsidiary and iated paniss (continued)

Nama of company % owned Natum of busngss

Howden Sigora Brokoriligh Anonim Sirkati Turkay 5 lnsurance broking

Anthony K Falcon Limited” UK 100 nsurance brojung

BGH Risk Solutions Limdod” UK 100 nsurance braking

Borgugh Run-Off Sarvices Limited UK 100 tnsurance broking

Chnical Trials Insurance Servicas Limited UK 55 Insurance broking

Condor Prolassional indemnity Limiag® UK 100 Insurance broking

DCA (F1) Limited UK 83 Insurance underwriting service provider
DCA Holdngs Limited® UK 100 Intermadiate holding company
DUAL Assal Underwriting LimBed UK 20 Insutance underwriting agancy
OVAL Corporato Aisks Limitad UK 100 insurance undarariting agancy
DUAL International Limted* UK 100 intsrmediate holding company
DUAL intemational Underwriting Limited UK 100 tnsurance underwTing sgency
DUAL Overseas Investments Limited” UK 100 Intarmadiate holding company
DUAL Speclaity Risks Limhted UK 100 Insurance underwriting spency
Foothall League & P F A Administration Limted® UK 100 Insuranca broking

FP Maring Alsks (LK) Limied UK. 51 Insurance broking

Global Services 1299 Limted* ux 100 Intarmediate holdng company
HIG Services Limited™ UK 100 Management sarvices
Howden (NAZ) Limited UK 51 insuranca broking

Howden Braking Group Limttad** UK 100 Intlarmediate holdng company
Howden Employee Benefits LimHed" ukK -] Management servicas
Howden Enargy Limiied UK 100 Insurance brokng

Howden nsurance Brokers Limitad UK 100 Insurance brolung

Howden Medical Insuranca Sarvices Limited - UK 100 Managemant sgrvices
Howdén North American Property & Casualty Limited UK 100 Insurance broking

Howden Property Insurance Services Limlied UK 82 tnsurance broking

Hyperien Marina Holdings LimRad* UK 83 Intarmediats holding company
J4 K Buckenham Limited UK 100 lnsurance broking

tandar Ebarii Shortar (Aviation) Limded* UK 100 Insurance brokng

Ostrakon Capital (2) Linitad" UK 100 Insurance broking

Ostrakon Securties Limhad* UK 100 insurance brokng

Risk Assessmiant Through Evaluation Lamilgd” UK 100 insurance brokng

Spa Undarwriting Services Select Limiad UK [:1d] Insyrance broking

Tamasis DUAL Limited UK -1 nsurance haenwrilng sgency
Windsor Insurance Brokers (UK) Limited UK 100 nsurance brokng

Windsor Insurance Brokers Limitad UK 100 Insumnca broking

Windsor Limitad” UK 100 Intarmeciatg hokdog company
Windsor Partners Limited UK 100 Ingunince broking

Windsor Partners LLP* UK 100 Insurznce broking

Windsor Professional Indemnity Limited UK 100 Insuranca broking

Wridsor Properties Limited UK 100 Insurance broking

wndsor Services Limtad® UK 93 Insurance broking

Wnidsor Trustees Limited” UK 100 Insurance broking

Howden Uruguay Corredores de Reaseguros S.A Uruguay 100 Insurance broking

Howden tnsurance LLC usa 100 Insurance broking

Howden nsurance Servees, Inc USA 100 Insurance breking

Howden Specialty Ungerwriting LLC usa 75 Insurance underwritng agency
VK Underwriters LLC usa 100 INSurance ungarwriting agency

* Subsidiaras that are exemp! from aud.t by virtue of section 479A of thae Companiles Act 2008

“* Hsid directly by Hypenon Insurance Group Limled

“** Although laga! ownarship is less than 50%, fmancial results ara 100% consoldatad for the purposes of thase fingncial statsments, as the Group has eflective control over

thase entities
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39 Discontinued operations

Howden nsurance Brokars inc
On 12 Aprl 2013 tha Company soid its 100% investment m the ordinary share capital of Howden msurance Brokers Inc for cash considerabon of €77,000

The resuits of the dscontnued cperabong, which have been inclutied in the consolidaled income stalament were as fofaws

2013 2012

£000 £000
Fats and commissions 313 593
Other operating income 4 1
Other operatng costs {259} {498)
Depracialion amortisation and mpasmant of non-financial assets {1} 6)
Operating profit 57 g2
Profg before tax 57 92
Atirbulabie lax axpense - (17}
Netprolit attnbutable o discontnued operalions 57 75
As pan of tha transaction, Howdan Insurance Brokers inc transierred a book of busl ‘o another idary, Howden Insurance Services Inc The book of business was

transiesTed at # nel assal valua of £nil

A total less on sale of £287 000 arpse on the dispesal of Howdan Insurance Brokers inc, being the procesds of disposal less the carryng amount of the aubsidiary’s net
assals and attrbutable goodwil, as well 25 a less rcunred ichowing the transler af the book of busingss at a zero nal asset valus Tha goodwl ol Howden in \ce Brokers
Inc was impaired in the prior year by £1,1%6,000, leaving the resufiing gocdwil balance as nil at the end of 30 September 2012

39 Discontinued operationa (continued)

Tha nat assets of Howden Insuranca Brokars Inc ot the dale of gisposal are ns tollaws

2012

£'000
Proparty, plani and equipmant [
tnsuranca balances ar
Dwn cash belances B
Deferred tax assel 2
Other crediton {at)
Nel assels 364
Loss on dgposal
Tatal considaration

— (287}
Nt cash inflow arksng on disposal

Conslderation raceived in cash and cash equivolants 7
Lass cash and cash equivalents disposed of {70)

CFC Undorwriling (imited
0n 19 June 2012, the Company sold 5 59 5% investmant in the ordnary share capiia! of CFC Undenwrtng Limied for cash consideration o1 £20,810,000
The rasulls of the discontinued cparationa which have been Included in the consoidated ncome staterment for the prior year, were as lolows

2012

£°000
Fees and commissions 5,542
Other operaling income L]
Qthar oparating cosls {4,520
Depreciation, amortisation and impakment of non-linancial assets {85}
Cpambng profi 1,938
Finznce incoma 15
Finance costs -
Profit belore tox 1,953
Anrnbutablo tax expense (#48)
Prolit afiter tax 1,505

Profit on dispcsat of discontnuad operations
Net profit attnbutabie to dscontinued opevations

17,122
18,628

Dunng the year ended 30 Septembar 2012 CFC Unterwriing coniributed £387,000 to the Group's net cperatng cash flows, paid £156 000 n reapect of invastng acimvities,
end paid £ni in respact of financing aclvities

A profdof €17 'm amsa in 2012 on the disposal of CFC Underwritng Limhed, beng he procesds of disposal fess the carmynp smoun of the subsidiary’s net assets and
The major classes of assels and Eabidties comprising the operations sold are as folows

2012

£'000
Proparty.plant and equipment 501
Qthar non-currant assets k1]
Totat non-currani assats 533
Trade anc other racalvables 2,686
Own cash 1,615
Insurance cash 4,697
[nsurance receivabiss 6,747
intercompany recexables 1,013
Total assets soid 17,497
Trate and ofther payabies {1.202)
Tax fabiites {409)
Insurancs payables {9,959)
Yolal Liabitias assoclated with assets soid {11.570)

Natasssts as at 19 June 2012 5227
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40 Events after the balance sheel date

Oon 17 October 2013, the Group through certan of s wholly-owned subsidiaries issued $250 milion of Senlor Securgd Tarm Loans with J P Margan Limited, HSBC
Securittas (USA) Inc and Lioyts Sacurttias (USA) Inc, as Joint Lead Arrangers The Term Loansg bear interest payeble quartery al a varabte intarest rate based on elther
L!BOR or & base rate plus, in ether case, an applicabla margin

The applicable margn for LIBOR Term Loans Is 4 75% with a LIBOR Noor of 1 00%  in terms of scheduled repaymant, the Tarm Loans am repayable in equal quartery
instatmenls aggregating $2 5 mition in each loan yaar with tha remaining batance dua at Snalmaturity on 17 Qctober 2015 Concurrent with the issuance of the Term Loans,
tha Group also reached agreement with J P Morgan Eurapa Limaad, MSBC Bank pic and Lioyes Bank pic to provide £25 mEson of Revolving Credit Facifles maturing on
17 Octobar 2018 The appticable margm for LIBOR borrowings of Revolving Loans is 4 259% with a LIBOR foor o 1 0%

The Term Loens and Aevolving Loans are securad by cross-guaraniess snd dabentures over Bse Compamy and over a number of the subsidianss of the Group

Nel procesds from the issuance of the Tenn Loans ware applied, inter alla, to the repsyment in tull of the Campany’s cutstandaig borrowings undar its existing Sanior Tarm
ang Mutticurrency Revolving Cradit Facidies Agreernent dated 31 May 2012

The Group concluded the acquisition of two companies afiar the date of this report, Primary Group Inc and Bar Zv Ravid Insurance Agency Lid Detads of matariat
busness combinations after the date of this raport can be found in Nota 35




Hyperion insurance Group Limited
NDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMEBERS OF HYPERION INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

We have audded the pamnl company fmandal statements of Hyperion insumnce Group Limitad for the year endad 30 Saplember 20t which comprisa the Parent
Company Balance Sheel and the rlated noles 110 12 The finsncial reperling framework that has been appbed in thelr preparaban i applicable law and Unkled Kingdom
Atcouning Standards (United Kingdom Generaty Accepled Accounting Practice). .

Thb mpart is mads solaly to the company's members, as » bady, In accordance with Chaptar 3 of Pard 18 of the Compnnies Act 2006 Our audil wark has been undertakan
us thal we might stgle (o the company’s members those matiors wo gra faquired to stats to them in an audlor's repart end for no ofherpurpose  Ta the fulest extent

permidied by law, wo da not accept o respansbidy to anyone other than the company and the company's membars a8 3 bedy 10 cur aldd wark 87 this report, or
for tho opinions we have formed

Rarpective masponsibilities of directors and audiior

Az axplainad mare fully in the Directors Rasponaibiiies Statement, the directors are responsible for tha praparaton of the parent pany financial stat s and for
being satisbod that they ghve B true and fair view Our responsibiily is to audit and express an apinion on the parent pany Bnanclal 3 In accordance with

eppicable law and intematicnal Standands on Audfiing (UK and ireland) Thosa stancards requis us to comply with the Audiing Pracices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditon

Scope of the aud!l of the financizl statamants

An audit involves obtaining evidenca about the amounts and disckosures in tha inancial statements Sufficient to give reasanablo nesumace thal ino fnaneial statements are
freve from r la) mizstat \. whather d by fraud or arror  This incfudes an assassment of whather the accounting potcies are sppropriate to the parent company's
circumstances and have been consistenlly appied nd adequately dredosed, the maronablenass of significant accounting estimales mada by the dirciors, and the oversfl
presantation of he financlal statements (n addtion we resd al the financal and non-Gnancial information in the annual report fo identily materal inconsisiencies with the
audiied fmandal siatements and (o identidy any information that is apparently materafly incormect based on, or materlaly inconsistent with, the knowledge scquired by us in
the course of perfarming the sudiL i we bacoms awore of any apparent matedal misstatements or inconsistendas we contider the impications for our repon

Oplnlon on & sin

In our opinien tho parent company financlal statements

« gve & true end falr view of the stata of the parent company s affeirs as at 30 September 2013

« have bean proparly prepaned in accordance with Untled Kingdom Ganerally Accepiad Accouniing Practice, and
- have bean prepared in accardance with the requirements of the Compenles Acl 2008

Opinion on other matter prescribsd by the Companies Act 2006

In gut opinion the nformaton gven in the Stratagie Report and the Drectoss' Report tor tha Enancial year for which the (nancial statements era prepared ls consistant with
tho parent company financial slmemants

Mattars on which we are required to repon by excaption

Wa have nothing to repoit in nespect of the folowing malierg where tho Compandes Al 2008 requinis us 1o repert to you i, i eur opinion

- adequaie accounting records have not been kept by the parent company or returns edeq for pur audi have rot been mcahqd ivm branches nol visited by us or
« the parent pany financisl slat ts are nol in ag | with the lng recards and rotums, oF
- cartain daclosures of directors’ remunaraton apecified by law are not made, of

- wa have not received afl the informaton and sxplanations we raquine for our audit

Other mattay

have mported separst up fnancial sliatemenis of Hyperlon Insurance Group Limited for the year ended 30 Sepiember 2613
' ‘ .
Av. o~ oy

David Ruth (Senior Slatutory Auditor)

for and o0 behak of Daloitie LLP

Chanered Accountan] and Stalutory Auditor
London, Unkad Kingdom

« 1§ Decembar2013




Hypenon insurance Group Limatod

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2013

Flxed assets
Investmeants m subsidiary undartakings

Current assats

Dabtora due wilhin ona yaar

Debtars due alter more than nne yaar
Cash at bank and in hand

Craditors
Amounts fakng due wilhdy oo yoor

Nel current eussts
Total ansets less cumrant Habllities

Craditors
Amaounts faling duo after mors than one year
Not assets

Capltal and raserves
Called up shara capial
Share pramoum account
Qther resaerves

Profit and loss accoumnt

Shoreholders’ funds

The Eng statginants were apgroved by the Board of Drectors and authorised for 1ssue

-~
g
D P Howden E R M Fady
Chwef Exacutve Fmance dwecior )
Company Number 2937288

The notes on pages 49 1o 51 ioam an vitegral pan of thaso financial siatements

R

Notes

[T

10
w0

Q.

2013 2012
£'000 £000
21,973 21,860
58,360 60,873
102,474 76,006
7 408
160,841 139,265
{32,302 (7.059)
124,539 132 228
130,512 154 086
(80 697) 74 10)
60,818 79,955
500 509
€2,053 650 612
364 364
6898 1B 470
€0.813 ik

. Docembar 2013 They were signed on its behalf by




Hyparion Insurance Group Limited

Notag to the accounts

For the year ended 30 Septombar 2013

1 Accounting poficies

Ths principal accountin Tich ptad in the preparation of thasa financial staterments are set out below These wora eppled to iems considered matarial to the financlal

statemants in both me;u;mm and pror year

{a) Basin of preparation
The Board has dacided that the conlinued usa of UK GAAP at the Company level is a more appropriate method of accounting rather han the application of IFRS

The financial statamants have been prepared under the hislarical cost convantion and in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards The directors have made the
appropriate enquires, and have a reasonable sxpectation that the Company has adequate resources to conlinue in oparational exisience for the foresesable future
Accordingty thay continue to adop! the going concem basls in preparing thasa acccunts

{b) Forsign currenciea

Transactions denominatad in foreign cusrencies are translatad to Stermg at the exchange ratas ruling at the data of the transaction  Asssls and fabilities denominatad in
forelgn cumencies at the balance shest date are translated nto Stertng at the rates rulng at the balance sheat date  Exchange diferances arisng are deaht wih hrough the
profit and loss account.

{c) Dividend distribution
Equity dividands dectared at the discration of the Company are tecognised in the pericd in which thay ame declared and approved by shargholders

(d) Dividends recelvahie
Divicends received are recognised in the pariad in which they are dectared and approved by the company paying the dividend

(@) Investments
invastments in subsidiary undanakings are camied at cost less any provision for knpaiment.

(A Finance costs

Fmance charges ara accounted for on an accruals basls In the profit and loss account and are added to tha carrying amount of the insiumen to the axtent that they ars nol
settied in the period in which they ardse Protassional and othor lees incurred diractly In raising long-ianm debt financa are capitalised and amorlised over the peried of the
instrumant.

{g) Taxstlon

Corporation tax on the profit or loss for the year comprisas curent and daforred ax.

Current tax Is the expecied tax payable on tha laxable income or tha year, using tax rates and laws enacted or subsianiively enacted al the balance sheet dats, and any
adjustments o tax payable in respact of pravious ysara

Defarred taxation is providad on maltarial tming ditfarences betwaen tha incidence of incorne and sxpenditure for taxation gnd Accounls purposes using the full provision
basis Defarred tax assals are only recognised to the axtsnt that thay are considered racoverable egainst luture laxable profts Dafarred tax Balancas are nol discounted
Delered tax is determined using the tax mias thal have been gnacted or substantively snacied by the balance sheet date, and are expectad to apply when the deferrad tax
liablity Is settled or the delerred tax ssset is realised

Changes In deferrad tax asssis or ligbiities are recognised as a companent of tax expanse In tha incoma statement, axcept wherg they relata 1o Rems that are charged or
cradded directly to equity in whch case the related delened tax la also charged or credited directly o equity

2 Profit and losa sccount
As parmitted by seclion 408 of the Companias Act 2006, the Company has nol includad i3 own profit and Joss account in these financal statemants The Company’s profit
aftar tax 1or the year was €0 4m (2012 £18 2m) This is daah with In the financial slalements of the Group

3 Dividends

Tha Company has paid an intsrim dividend in the yoar of £1.991,000 The Company has nal declared any furthar dividands during the year ended 30 September 2013
(2013 £1,200,000)




Hyparion Insurance Group Limited

4 Investments

Cost

At Beginning uf year
Additions

Disposals

At and of year

2013 2012
£°000 E000
21,860 21,8582
122 73,314

K] 21660

The toliowing were the principal subsialary entities at 30 Septamber 2013 Unless otharwise shown, the copizl of each company Is whally-cwned, is in ordinary shares and

the principal country of oparation ks tha country of incorpomtionfregistration

Hams of company

DUAL Intemational Limied
Hawden Broking Group Limitad
HIG Services Limitad

J K Buckenham Limitag
Hyperion Marine Holdings Limited
Hypearion Financa Sart
Hyperion Development Sarl

On 4 Fabruary 2013, Hyperion Insurance Group Limited ("Hypenon®} acquired §5% of a group of companies (the *FP Marina group™) through ils newly incormpomied

*% owned  Nalure of businmg

Intormodiate hokding company

intanmadiate holding company and insurance broking
Manapement sarvicas

Insurance broking

Intermadiate holding company

Management sevees

Managameni sarvices

subsidiary, Hyperion Marine Holdngs Limited Further details of the transaction are given in the Group's financlal siatements in note 34

Ouring the year, Hyparion aiso acquired rwvestments in twe

tnvastmani in Avant Garantias SL

§ Debtors due whhin one year

Other dablors

Group ralial debtor

Defarrad tax assat

Prepaymenis and accread income

Amounts dus from Group yndarakings
Dividands receivable from Group undertaiings
Loans due from Group undanakings

Amounts falling due after one year

Prapaymeants and accrusd income
Amounts dus (rom Group undariakings

6 Creditors - amounts falling due within ono year

Bank loans

Sharaholder loans

Amounts owed o Group underakngs
Interast payabla

Comomlion tax payable

Other crediiors

7 Craditors - amounts ialling due after more than one yaar

Sharaholder loans, secured
Shargholdar loan notes
8ank loang

gement servica companies Hyperion Financa S a ¢ | and Hyparion Gevelopment S a 11, and disposed of it

2012 2012
£'000 £000
120 162
- 998
7 200
972 1,156
35,096 24 704
13,429 4,429
8735 24,132
58,360 60,673
2013 2012
£'000 £ 000
3,065 3.454
99,408 74,552
102,473 78,006
2013 2012
£'000 £000
{20,600) {3,200)
{182) {296)
(2,989) (1.013)
{304} (869}
- (517}
(627) (1,384)
{32,302} {7,059)
2013 2012
£'000 £000
(6,037} (2.006)
{6.024) {5,125)
88 836] 67,000
{80,697) (74 131)

Tha bank barrowings include the syndicated faciities with HSBC and Lioyds Banking Group ol £70m entaced hio upan acquisition of the Windsor group in 2012 The
faciities arg spht into a £30m Amodtising Facilty (Facility A) payable over tha course of the fvae years, and a {40m Buflet Fachity (Faclity B) payabla at the and of the five yoar

tarm £3m of Faclity A was rapaki during 2013

Curing the yaar tha Group also digw down on an acquistion (actity and o reuaiving credd lacility £6 1m has been drawn dawn on the acguisition laciity fot the year ended
3G Saptembar 2013 which has a total avaliable of E30m Tha ravolving credil lacitty has a balance of £18 5m at year end Both the scquisition and revoiving cred (aciities

aro clagsiied as current labiflias

The facikties bear interest which is cakulated based on LIBOR plus margks Tha margin is different for each taciity and retfuces ad the adjusted leverage reduces for the
Group Faclify A basra interast of as high 23 3 25% or B3 low as 2% aver LIBOR, wnie Faciity B bears intemst of as high as 3 75% or as low as 2 50% over LIBOR The
Group has entared inio Interest rate Swaps io hadge the risk of an agverse nterast rate maovement on the & morth LIBOR rale (refer to Nots 23) Tha faciiles are secured
by cross-guarantaes gnd debentures over a number of Group companias as delailed in e notes

Sea note 40 in the Group accounts far changas 1o bank borrowgs occuTing afisr he batanca sheal date




Hyperion Insurance Group Limited

8 Defsrrad tax

Deletred tax on provisicns

Deferred tax assel

Balance at beginnng of year

Other tming diferences

Balance at end of year

Hat daferrad tax aaset ot ond of year

Total deferred tax in proflt and loas accaunt far the year

% Share capltal

Details of the Company’s share capital are given in tha Group financial stataments on note 25

10 Reconciliation of r ts In sharehokh

As at 1 October 2012
Shares kssued

Aepurchase of share cagital
Dividends paid

Profit {or the year

As at 30 Seplember 2013

As at {1 October 2011
Sharos Issued

Dividands paid

Profit for the year

As at 30 Septambar 2012

11 Caphal cammiumenis

2013 2012
€000 £00g
- 200
m -
- 200
200 200
200 200
- 200
' tunde
Cafled Share Profit and Total
up share premium Other less  aharehoider
eapital account roserves account funds
£000 £'400 £'000 £'000 £000
505 60,612 364 18,470 79 855
10 1,449 . 1,451
13} - - (9.980) {9.999)
. - - {1.991) (1991}
- . 399 399
500 52,053 164 6 858 £3.815
Called Share Profit snd Total
up share premium Other 71 sharsholder
capital sccount reserves sccount tunds
000 £'000 E'000 £000 £'009
4723 KLET:] 2 1,476 — a7 443
-5 25,431 - - 26,517
- - {1,200] (1.200)
- - 18,194 18,194
5. GU.HTZ s

The Company had no captal cammitments as at 30 Septermber 2013, nor at 30 Saptembar 2012

12 Post balance sheat evants

See note 40 In the Group accounts for changes to bank bemowngs pccuming aftar the balance sheat dals




